
MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD) 
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Board of Directors  Office      Term Expiration 
 
Butch Gabrielski   President     May 2023 
Wayne Reorda   Secretary/Treasurer   May 2022 
Bill Gessner    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2023 
Mike Fenton    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2023 
Tom Sauer    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2022 
 
DATE: Wednesday, Aug. 4, 2021 
TIME: 10:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Meridian Ranch Recreation Center 
  10301 Angeles Road 
  Peyton, CO  80831 
 
NOTE this meeting will be held in person with current Covid protocols in place. 
 
The Public may participate in person or by following this link Click here to join the meeting or 
by telephone by calling +1 872-242-8662 and using Phone Conference ID: 310808435#  Please 
comply with the Governor’s Executive Orders and State Public Health Orders. 
 
I.  ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS: 

A. Call to Order 
B. Conflicts of Interest 
C. Approve Agenda 
D. Visitor Comments (Limited to 3 minutes per resident or household) 
E. Review and Approve July 7, 2021, Combined Regular Board Meeting Minutes 

(enclosure) 
F. Review and Approve July 21, 2021, Combined Special Board Meeting Minutes 

(enclosure) 
 
II.  FINANCIAL ITEMS: 

A. Receive from CRS Quarterly MRMD Cash Position Summary and Unaudited financial 
Statements (enclosure and/or distributed under separate cover) 

B. Review and Accept MSMD Cash Position Summary and Unaudited Financial 
Statements (enclosure and/or distributed under separate cover) 

C. Review Tap Fee Report for Information Only (enclosure and/or distributed under 
separate cover) 

D. Review, Ratify and Approve Monthly Payment of Claims (enclosure and/or 
distributed under separate cover) 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 of 123

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NjE1MTI1ZTAtZGJhMy00MzEzLWE2YjAtNGY2OTk3OGIzMDM1%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22ddbf1e07-ec1e-4dc6-8ef3-1a31c2da785b%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22778ad138-ba67-4d4d-bdb1-39557c30639d%22%7d
admin1
Typewriter
Page 3 - 6

admin1
Typewriter
Page 7 - 8

admin1
Typewriter
Page 10 - 16

admin1
Typewriter
Page 17 - 25

admin1
Typewriter
Page 26 - 27

admin1
Typewriter
Page 28 - 29



Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District (MRMD) 
Meridian Service Metropolitan District (MSMD) 
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District 2018 Subdistrict (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 
III.  OPERATIONS & ENGINEERING ITEMS: 

A. Information Items (No Action) 
1. MSMD Operations Reports – Water, Sewer, Parks and Grounds, Recreation 

(enclosure and/or handout) 
2. Manager’s Verbal Report 
3. Presentation and Discussion concerning engagement of a financial 

consulting firm to develop a Build Out CIP financial plan for water and 
wastewater infrastructure. 

B. Action Items 
1. Consider and authorize Board President to sign contract with a consultant to 

be determined  
2. Consider and authorize Board President to sign contract for Preliminary 

Permitting Services with JDS Hydro for Water Treatment Plant Expansion, 
Site Development Plan, $17,900. 
 

IV.  DEVELOPER ITEMS: 
A. Verbal Report from Construction Manager 

 
V.  DIRECTOR ITEMS: 
  A.    
 
VI.  LEGAL ITEMS: 

A. Enter into Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b) to receive legal advice 
regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with Cherokee Metropolitan District 

 
VII.  ADJOURNMENT:   
 

The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for Wednesday, September 8, 
2021 at 10:00 a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road, 
Peyton, Colorado 80831.     

Page 2 of 123

admin1
Typewriter
Page 30 - 32

admin1
Typewriter
Page 33 - 109

admin1
Typewriter
Page 110 - 123



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

1 

MINUTES OF THE COMBINED REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD) 
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
 

Held: July 7, 2021, 10:00 a.m., at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 
Angeles Road, Peyton, Colorado 80831 

 
Attendance: The following Directors were in attendance: 
 
  Butch Gabrielski, President 
  Wayne Reorda, Secretary/Treasurer 
  Bill Gessner, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
    Mike Fenton, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
  Tom Sauer, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 Also present were:  
  Jim Nikkel; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Jennette Coe; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Eileen Krauth; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Beth Aldrich; Meridian Service Metro District  
  Braden McCrory; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Ryan Kozlowski; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Angie Kelly; Community Resource Services 
  Ron Fano; Spencer Fane 
  Tom Kerby; Tech Builders 
  Jim O’Hara; Tech Builders (via telephone) 
  Raul Guzman; Tech Builders (via telephone) 
  Esme Wilhelm; Homeowner 
  Nancy Loew; Homeowner 

Jeff Munger; Cherokee Metropolitan District 
 

Call to Order A quorum of the Board was present, and the Directors confirmed their 
qualification to serve.  The meeting was called to order at 10:02 a.m. 

 
Disclosure Matter Mr. Fano noted that written disclosures of the required conflict of interests of 

all Directors have been filed with the Secretary of State. 
 
Approve Agenda The Board reviewed the Agenda.  A motion was made to approve the agenda.  

The motion was seconded and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present. 

 
Visitor Comments Ms. Lowe had concerns regarding the following. 

Page 3 of 123



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

2 
 

DN 6074594.1  

 Landscape maintenance, dead trees need to be replaced, water 
schedule needs to be examined, invasive weeds need to be removed, 
some areas need new mulch, areas that have dirt and no grass need to 
be reseeded or sod put down, mowing schedule needs to be examined.  

 Getting the information that is going to be posted on the new Facebook 
page, (Meridian Karen’s United), to residents that do not have Facebook 
accounts. 

 Recreation Center indoor pool needs to be kept clean. Pool heater was 
not working on May 31st thru June 4th. Elevator was not working on May 
31st. Adding more social activities at the Recreation Center. 

 
Ms. Wilhelm has created a new Facebook page (Meridian Karen’s United) in an 
effort to bridge the gap in communication between the residents and the 
Meridian Service Metro District, Warren Management, and the developer. Only 
Meridian Ranch residents can join, and only constructive comments are 
allowed. There was discussion about the best way to get information to the 
residents about what is occurring in the neighborhood. It was proposed that 
Ms. Wilhelm work with Mr. Kozlowski to create a resident’s corner in the 
monthly newsletter. 

    
Approve Minutes The Board reviewed the June 9, 2021, Board Minutes and a motion was made, 

and seconded to approve the minutes as presented.  The motion was approved 
by unanimous vote of directors present.   

 
Financial Items Cash Position Summary and Financial Statements:  Ms. Coe reviewed the cash 

position summary and monthly financial reports for May 2021.  A motion was 
made to accept the cash position summary and financial statements as 
presented.  The motion was seconded and approved by unanimous vote of 
directors present. 

 
 Review 2020 Tap Fee Report:  Ms. Coe reviewed the June 2021Tap Fee Report 

with the Board for information only.     
  

Approval of Payment of Claims:  Ms. Coe reviewed the updated claims 
presented for approval at this meeting: 

MRMD: 02278-02283 totaling $1,875.75. 
MSMD: Interim payments from May 26, 2021, for ratification: 
totaling$3,589.77.  
MSMD:  Interim payment from June 23, 2021, for ratification: 
totaling $128,896.98. 
MSMD: Bill.com payments and Check #’s 13288 and 13289 
totaling $903,154.93. 

Page 4 of 123



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

3 
 

DN 6074594.1  

A motion was made and seconded to approve the MSMD payment of claims. 
The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present.  
A motion was made and seconded to approve the MRMD payment of claims. 
The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 

Operations &  
Engineering Items  Information Items: 
 
 MSMD Operations Reports:  

 Mr. McCrory presented the water, sewer, parks and grounds, and 
drainage operation reports which included information from pages 25-
26 of the Board Packet. 

 Mr. Kozlowski presented the Recreation Center Report to the Board 
which included information from page 27 of the Board Packet.  Mr. 
Kozlowski also noted:   

 On June 29th five teenagers were fighting and using profanity. 
When asked to leave they refused until police were called. Mr. 
Kozlowski recommended a suspension. The Board discussed and 
decided on a six-month suspension with the potential to appeal. 

 
Managers Verbal Report:  Mr. Nikkel provided status reports on the following 
matters:   

 LFH Well No. 5 is substantially complete and has been producing 
water to the system. 

 LFH Well No. 8 is ready to produce water to the system after 
final Bac-t testing.  This site still does not have permanent power 
to it. 

 LFH Well No. 7 will be ready to come online in Mid-late July.  This 
site also does not have permanent power to it. 

 Frazee Construction is ready to make the switch over to allow 
direct chlorination of water once the Basis of Design Report is 
approved by the State. 

 We continue to have many complaints about landscaping issues.  
Braden and Aleks have obtained pricing on 40 hours of dead tree 
removal and have been requested to obtain pricing for repair to 
turf area along Londonderry. 
 

Action Items:  
1. Ratify Agreement with Sterling Ranch for 90 days extension of 

payment for taps. 
A motion was made and seconded to ratify the decision to grant Sterling 
Ranch a 90 day extension (through September 30, 2021) of its obligation 
to make payment for taps under the existing IGA. The motion was 
approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 

Page 5 of 123



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

4 
 

DN 6074594.1  

 
2. Ratify Agreement with Cherokee Metropolitan District for contribution 

to development of a Replacement Plan. 
A motion was made and seconded to ratify the Agreement with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District for contribution to development of a 
Replacement Plan. The motion was approved by unanimous vote of 
directors present. 

 
Developer Items Mr. Guzman provided a verbal report to the Board on the status of Meridian 

Ranch development activities.  
 Rolling Hills Ranch Fil #1 Underground complete Rex Road to Lambert. 
 Rolling Hills Ranch Fil #1 Builders want to start construction, but the 

sidewalks need to be completed first. 
 Rolling Hills Ranch Fil #2 Starting to put in sewer this week. This should 

take three to four months. 
 Replatting of Rolling Hills Ranch Fil #3 is going before the planning 

commission on August 5,2021. 
 
Director Items There were none. 
 
Legal Items Receive legal advice regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with 

Cherokee Metropolitan District. 
A motion was made, seconded and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present to open an Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b) to 
receive legal advice regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District. 

 A motion was made, seconded and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present to close the executive session.  There was no reportable action. 

 
Adjournment There being no further business to come before the Board, the President 

adjourned the meeting at 12:16 p.m. 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for August 4, 2021, at 

10:00 a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road, 
Peyton, Colorado 80831.   

 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Secretary for the Meeting  

Page 6 of 123



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

1 

MINUTES OF THE COMBINED SPECIAL MEETING 
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD) 
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
 

Held: July 21, 2021, 1:00 p.m., at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 
Angeles Road, Peyton, Colorado 80831 

 
Attendance: The following Directors were in attendance: 
 
  Butch Gabrielski, President 
  Wayne Reorda, Secretary/Treasurer 
  Bill Gessner, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
    Mike Fenton, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
  Tom Sauer, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 Also present were:  
  Jim Nikkel; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Jennette Coe; Meridian Service Metro District  
  Ron Fano; Spencer Fane 
  Tiffany Lu Leichman: Sherman & Howard (via telephone) 
  Raul Guzman; Tech Builders (via telephone) 
 
Call to Order A quorum of the Board was present, and the Directors confirmed their 

qualification to serve.  The meeting was called to order at 1:02 P.M. 
 
Disclosure Matter Mr. Fano noted that written disclosures of the required conflict of interests of 

all Directors have been filed with the Secretary of State. 
 
Approve Agenda The Board reviewed the Agenda.  A motion was made to approve the agenda.  

The motion was seconded and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present. 

    
Financial Items Approval of Payment of Claims:  Ms. Coe reviewed the updated claims 

presented for approval at this meeting: 
MSMD: Bill.com payments and Check #’s 13290 thru 13292  
totaling $170,470.79. 

 
 Action Items:  

A.  Consider MRMD Resolution 21-01 Extending Filing of 2020 Audit. 
A motion was made and seconded to adopt MRMD Resolution 21-01, 
Extending Filing of 2020 Audit. The motion was approved by unanimous 
vote of directors present. 

Page 7 of 123



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

2 
 

DN 6074631.1  

 
B. Consider MSMD Resolution 21-03 Extended Filing of 2020 Audit. 

A motion was made and seconded to adopt MSMD Resolution 21-03, 
Extending Filing of 2020 Audit. The motion was approved by unanimous 
vote of directors present. 
 

Legal Items Receive legal advice regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District. 
A motion was made, seconded and approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present to open an Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. Section 24-6-402(4)(b) 
to receive legal advice regarding arbitration/post-arbitration matters with 
Cherokee Metropolitan District.  A motion was made, seconded and approved 
by unanimous vote of directors present to close the executive session. 
 
In open session, a motion was made, seconded and approved by unanimous 
vote of directors present to approve moving forward with securing bond 
financing through the MSMD sewer enterprise as discussed in executive 
session, and to engage the law firm of Sherman & Howard as bond counsel, and 
Piper Sandler as investment banker, subject to legal review/approval of 
engagement letters. 
 
    

Adjournment There being no further business to come before the Board, the President 
adjourned the meeting at 2:05 P.M. 

 
 The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for Wednesday, August 4, 

2021, at 10:00 a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles 
Road, Peyton, Colorado 80831.   

 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Secretary for the Meeting  
 
 
 

Page 8 of 123



 

  S P E N C E R  F A N E  L L P  |  1 7 0 0  L I N C O L N  S T  S U I T E  2 0 0 0 ,  D E N V E R ,  C O  8 0 2 0 3 - 4 5 5 4  |  3 0 3 . 8 3 9 . 3 8 0 0  |  F A X  3 0 3 . 8 3 9 . 3 8 3 8  |  s p e n c e r f a n e . c o m    

RON FANO 

DIRECT DIAL: 303-839-3820 

rfano@spencerfane.com 

  

July 22, 2021 

Meridian Service Metropolitan District 

ATTN: Jim Nikkel, General Manager 

11886 Stapleton Drive 

Falcon, CO 80111  

Re: Opinion Concerning Executive Session Held July 21, 2021 

Dear Mr. Nikkel: 

 In my opinion, the executive session concerning the arbitration/post arbitration matters with 

Cherokee Metropolitan District that occurred during the Board meeting that I attended in person on July 

21, 2021 was properly announced and was a privileged attorney-client communication.  Therefore, no 

record or electronic recording of the executive session was required pursuant to Section 24-6-

402(2)(d.5)(II)(B), C.R.S. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

SPENCER FANE LLP 

 
 

 

Page 9 of 123



TOTAL

INVESTMENTS ALL

ColoTrust Plus ACCOUNTS

Account Activity Item Description

Beginning balance per bank 22,375$                 22,375$           

YTD credits - Total deposits, wires and transfers 40,384                   40,384             

YTD debits - Total vouchers, wires and transfers (1,784)                    (1,784)              

Bank balance at end of period 60,975                   60,975             

        

       Less:  Due to MRMD (1,500)                    (1,500)              

Current cash balance 59,475$                 59,475$           

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT

CASH POSITION RECONCILED TO GENERAL LEDGER

Year to Date (YTD) as of June 30, 2021

Adjusted as of July 28, 2021

Unaudited

Page 10 of 123



Apr - Jun 

Activity YTD Actual 

Adopted 

2021 Budget

Variance 

Over (Under)

Percent of 

Budget        

(50% YTD)

REVENUES

Property taxes 8,056$         38,173$        57,147$        (18,974)$      67%

Specific ownership taxes 1,694           2,762           2,000           762              138%

Interest 12                18                50                (32)               36%

Total revenues 9,762           40,953         59,197         (18,244)        69%

EXPENDITURES

Accounting and management 702              2,486           5,000           (2,514)          50%

Audit 798              798              1,000           (202)             80%

Legal -               -               1,000           (1,000)          0%

County treasurer fees 121              569              857              (288)             66%

3% TABOR reserve -               -               1,776           (1,776)          0%

Total expenditures 1,621           3,853           9,633           (5,780)          40%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 8,141$         37,100         49,564$        (12,464)$      

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 22,375         

ENDING FUND BALANCE 59,475$        

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT SUBDISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL - Cash Basis (Non-GAAP)

SUBDISTRICT FUND 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Unaudited

Page 11 of 123



CASH POSITION SUMMARY

TOTAL

CHECKING Compass Compass ALL

Wells Fargo ColoTrust Plus Loan Account Reserve ACCOUNTS

Account Activity Item Description

Beginning balance per bank 554,808$                  684,033$           3,188,955$        1,411,633$        5,839,429$          

YTD credits - deposits, wires and transfers 1,084,461                 1,409,259          3,143,850          234                    5,637,804            

YTD debits - vouchers, wires and transfers (1,507,980)                (1,407,193)         (1,389,994)         -                     (4,305,167)           

Bank balance at end of period 131,289                    686,099             4,942,811          1,411,867          7,172,066            

       Less: outstanding checks (277)                          -                     -                     -                     (277)                     

Adjusted balance at end of period 131,012                    686,099             4,942,811          1,411,867          7,171,789            

Less amount restricted for debt -                            111,305             (4,942,811)         (1,411,867)         (6,243,373)           

Les amount allocated for capital projects -                            (224,086)            -                     -                     (224,086)              

Less amount due to MSMD (14,870)                     -                     -                     -                     (14,870)                

Unrestricted balance at end of period 116,142                    573,318             -                     -                     689,460               

Current activity:

      Current payables (1,431)                       -                     -                     -                     (1,431)                  

Due from Subdistrict 1,500                        -                     -                     -                     1,500                   
      Deposits 148,000                    -                     -                     -                     148,000               
      Payments (1,876)                       -                     -                     -                     (1,876)                  
      Payroll tax payments (229)                          -                     -                     -                     (229)                     
      Transfers 10,000                      (10,000)              -                     -                     -                       
      Taxes transferred -                            (671,550)            671,550             -                     -                       

      Tap fees (261,000)                   -                     261,000             -                     -                       

Adjusted current unrestricted balance 11,106$                    (108,232)$          932,550$           -$                   835,424$             

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

Year to Date (YTD) as of June 30, 2021

Adjusted as of July 28, 2021

INVESTMENTS

Page 1

Page 12 of 123



GENERAL DEBT CTF TOTALS

Account Activity Item Description ALL FUNDS

Beginning balance per bank 695,538$        4,919,713$     -$                5,839,337$     

   Less 2019 checks clearing in 2020 -                  -                  -                  -                  

Allocated for Capital Projects -                  224,086          -                  -                  

   Fund transfer at 12/31/2020 (790)                790                 -                  -                  

Beginning funds available 694,748$        5,144,589$     -$                5,839,337$     

YTD REVENUES PER FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Property taxes 261,297          1,045,095       -                  1,306,392       

Specific ownership taxes 24,418            97,671            -                  122,089          

Investment income 290                 976                 -                  1,266              

Facility fees transferred from Meridian Service -                  1,035,000       -                  1,035,000       

Conservation Trust Entitlements -                  -                  26,658            26,658            

Miscellaneous 19                   50,000            -                  50,019            
Subdistrict - IGA 1,784              -                  -                  1,784              

Total YTD revenues 287,808          2,228,742       26,658            2,543,208       

Beginning funds available plus YTD revenues 982,556          7,373,331       26,658            8,382,545       

Less YTD expenditures per financial statements (293,096)         (905,872)         (11,788)           (1,210,756)      

YTD ENDING AVAILABLE FUND BALANCES 689,460$      6,467,459$   14,870$        7,171,789$   

Budget vs. Actual Page Reference: Page 3 Page 4 Page 5

FUND ALLOCATION OF AVAILABLE BALANCES

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

Year to Date (YTD) as of June 30, 2021

Page 2

Page 13 of 123



Apr-Jun 

Activity YTD Actual 

Adopted 

2021 Budget

Variance 

Over 

(Under)

Percent of 

Budget        

(50% YTD)

REVENUES

Property taxes 65,702$       261,297$     432,234$     (170,937)$    60%

Specific ownership taxes 12,808         24,418         38,647         (14,229)        63%

Investment income 108              290              5,000           (4,710)          6%

Miscellaneous -                   19                -                   19                -

Subdistrict - IGA 1,784           1,784           8,776           (6,992)          20%

Total revenues 80,402         287,808       484,657       (196,849)      59%

EXPENDITURES

Audit 2,562           2,702           10,000         (7,298)          27%

County treasurer fees 986              3,920           6,484           (2,564)          60%

Director fees and payroll taxes 1,599           2,906           12,000         (9,094)          24%

District management and accounting 6,261           13,663         30,000         (16,337)        46%

Dues and membership -                   598              1,500           (902)             40%

Election -                   92                -                   92                -

Insurance -                   4,702           5,000           (298)             94%

Legal -                   162              28,000         (27,838)        1%

Miscellaneous 266              549              1,000           (451)             55%

Payroll taxes -                   107              918              (811)             12%

Subdistrict IGA 1,500           3,695           8,776           (5,081)          -

Transfer to Meridian Service 260,000       260,000       260,000       -                   100%

3% Tabor Reserve -                   -                   14,600         (14,600)        0%

Total expenditures 273,174       293,096       378,278       (85,182)        77%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (192,772)$    (5,288)          106,379$     (111,667)$    

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 694,748       

ENDING FUND BALANCE 689,460$     

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

GENERAL FUND 

Unaudited

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL - Cash Basis (Non-GAAP)

For the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Page 3

Page 14 of 123



Apr-Jun 

Activity YTD Actual 

Adopted 

2021 Budget

Variance 

Over (Under)

Percent of 

Budget        

(50% YTD)

REVENUES

Property taxes 262,785$     1,045,095$  1,728,777$  (683,682)$    60%

Specific ownership taxes 51,233         97,671         154,589       (56,918)        63%

Facilities fees transferred from MSMD 443,000       1,035,000    3,600,000    (2,565,000)   29%

Investment income 455              976              10,000         (9,024)          10%

Miscellaneous -                   50,000         -                   50,000         -

Total revenues 757,473       2,228,742    5,493,366    (3,264,624)   41%

EXPENDITURES

County treasurer fees 3,943           15,678         25,932         (10,254)        60%

Bond interest (2008 $7M) -               -               350,000       (350,000)      0%

Loan interest (2013 $33.5M) 417,578       417,578       837,450       (419,872)      50%

Loan principal (2013 $33.5M) -               -               990,000       (990,000)      0%

Loan interest (2014 $3.5M) 47,678         47,678         95,617         (47,939)        50%

Loan principal (2014 $3.5M) -               -               105,000       (105,000)      0%

Loan interest (2018 $24M) 424,419       424,419       851,170       (426,751)      50%

Loan principal (2018 $24M) -               -               300,000       (300,000)      0%

Paying agent and bank fees 343              519              1,000           (481)             52%

Transfer to Meridian Service -               -               750,000       (750,000)      0%

Miscellaneous -               -               1,000           (1,000)          0%

Total expenditures 893,961       905,872       4,307,169    (3,401,297)   21%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (136,488)$    1,322,870    1,186,197$  136,673$     

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE 5,144,589    

ENDING FUND BALANCE 6,467,459$  

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

Unaudited

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND  CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL - Cash Basis (Non-GAAP)

DEBT FUND 

For the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Page 4

Page 15 of 123



Apr-Jun 

Activity YTD Actual 

Adopted 

2021 Budget

Variance 

Over (Under)

Percent of 

Budget        

(50% YTD)

REVENUES

Conservation Trust entitlements 14,870$       26,658$       35,000$       (8,342)$        76%

Total revenues 14,870         26,658         35,000         (8,342)          76%

EXPENDITURES

Transfer to Meridian Service -               11,788         35,000         (23,212)        34%

Total expenditures -               11,788         35,000         (23,212)        34%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE 14,870$       14,870         -$             14,870$       

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE -               

ENDING FUND BALANCE 14,870$       

Unaudited

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

BUDGET VS. ACTUAL - Cash Basis (Non-GAAP)

CONSERVATION TRUST FUND

For the Three and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Page 5

Page 16 of 123



CHECKING

Wells Fargo

Account Activity Item Description

Cash balance at end of period 3,447,586$           

July activity:

Utility billing from residents 609,172                
Recreation Center fees 14,212                  
Tap fees and meter fees (In) 214,120                
Tap fees transferred to MRMD (Out) (207,000)               
El Paso County Collection of Deliquent Accounts 6,597                    
Hydrant & Temp License Deposits 1,000                    
Transfer from Meridian Ranch - CTF 14,870                  
AT&T, Falcon Freedom Days and reimbursements 3,320                    
Payroll (233,208)               
Reserve Transfers 1,719,626             

July checks and automatic payments
Operations incl. interim checks (2,951,162)            
Interest, fees and returned checks (1,083)                   

    Sub-total 2,638,050             

August 4th payment Estimate (430,000)               

Adjusted balance 2,208,050$           

Less restricted funds as of June 30, 2021:
Conservation Trust Funds -                        
5% Reserve Fund -                        
Sewer Reserve Fund -                        
Capital Project Funds (1,736,075)            
Rate Stabilization Fund -                        

Adjusted Unrestricted Balance 471,975$              

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

CASH POSITION SUMMARY

For the Period Ended June 30, 2021

Adjusted as of July 31, 2021

Management Purposes Only

Page 17 of 123



Checking Conservation Sewer Capital Project

Rate 

Stabilization TOTAL ALL

Wells Fargo Petty Cash Trust Funds 5% Reserve Reserve ($2) Funds Funds ACCOUNTS

Account Activity Item Description

Cash balance at end of period 3,447,586.18   384                  11,824             1,673,937        349,875           4,223,027        683,834           10,390,467    

July activity:

Utility billing from residents 609,172             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    609,172             
Recreation Center fees 14,212               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    14,212               
Tap fees and meter fees (In) 214,120             -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    214,120             
Tap fees transferred to MRMD (Out) (207,000)            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (207,000)            
El Paso County Collection of Deliquent Accounts 6,597                 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    6,597                 
Hydrant & Temp License Deposits 1,000                 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    1,000                 
Transfer from Meridian Ranch - CTF 14,870               -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    14,870               
AT&T, Falcon Freedom Days and reimbursements 3,320                 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    3,320                 
Payroll (233,208)            -                    -                    -                    (233,208)            
Reserve Transfers 1,719,626          -                    14,870               (1,368,369)         (349,877)            -                    (16,250)              0                        

July checks and automatic payments

Operations incl. interim checks (2,951,162)         -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (2,951,162)         
Interest, fees and returned checks (1,083)                -                    0                        18                      3                        94                      15                      (952)                   

    Sub-total 2,638,050          384                    26,695               305,586             1                        4,223,121          667,599             7,861,436          

August 4th payment Estimate (430,000)            -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (430,000)            
 

Adjusted balance 2,208,050          384                    26,695               305,586             1                        4,223,121          667,599             7,431,436          

Less restricted funds as of June 30, 2021:

Petty Cash -                    (384)                   -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (384)                   

Conservation Trust Funds -                    -                    (26,695)              -                    -                    -                    -                    (26,695)              
5% Reserve Fund -                    -                    -                    (305,586)            -                    -                    -                    (305,586)            
Sewer Reserve Fund -                    -                    -                    -                    (1)                      -                    -                    (1)                      
Capital Project Funds (1,736,075)         -                    -                    -                    -                    (4,223,121)         -                    (5,959,195)         
Rate Stabilization Fund -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    (667,599)            (667,599)            

Unrestricted cash balance 471,975$         -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 471,975$         

Note: Additional investment accounts can be used for extraordinary expenditures.

ColoTrust Plus

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT

CASH POSITION RECONCILED TO GENERAL LEDGER

For the Period Ended June 30, 2021

Adjusted as of July 31, 2021

INVESTMENTS

CASH POSITION SUMMARY

Management Purposes Only Page 18 of 123



 Month of 

Jun 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 2021 

Budget 

 Variance 

Over (Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(50.0% YTD)

REVENUES

General Revenue - Fund 10 $1,873          $276,539          $286,910        ($10,371)        96.4%

Parks/Grounds Revenue - Fund 15 91,941          544,845            1,107,175       (562,330)        49.2%

Rec Center Revenue - Fund 16 175,824       955,744            1,889,250       (933,506)        50.6%

Water Revenue - Fund 40 343,845       1,361,952        3,150,000       (1,788,048)    43.2%

Sewer Revenue - Fund 50 216,772       983,358            3,107,525       (2,124,167)    31.6%

Billing Fees 4,530            21,065              71,400             (50,335)          29.5%

Grant Revenue -                12,060              35,000             (22,940)          34.5%

Interest Income 229               39,369              -                   39,369            - 

Miscellaneous Income -                13,711              -                   13,711            - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 835,014       4,208,644        9,647,260       (5,438,616)    43.6%

EXPENSES

Capital Expenses

Capital Expense - Other 4,478            99,502              1,630,000       (1,530,498)    6.1%

Capital Expense P&G Fund 15 -                -                    300,000           (300,000)         - 

Capital Expense MRRC Fund 16 -                -                    350,000           (350,000)         - 

Capital Expense Water Fund 40 411,359       3,101,262        6,115,000       (3,013,738)    50.7%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle 27,748          98,377              131,900           (33,523)          74.6%

Developer Reimbursements -                -                    750,000           (750,000)         - 

   TOTAL Capital Expenses 444,004       4,099,742        10,571,900     (6,472,158)    38.8%

Total Fund & General Expenses

General & Admin. Expense 66,309          728,232            805,015           (76,783)          90.5%

Personnel Expenses 154,030       862,085            2,365,640       (1,503,555)    36.4%

Parks/Grounds Expense - Fund 15 45,178          128,176            427,500           (299,324)        30.0%

MRRC Expense - Fund 16 38,502          141,004            390,000           (248,996)        36.2%

Water Expense - Fund 40 37,289          133,516            508,010           (374,494)        26.3%

Sewer Expense - Fund 50 96,473          359,540            696,300           (336,760)        51.6%

General Operating Expenses 80,975          489,231            1,063,733       (574,502)        46.0%

TABOR Emergency Reserve 3% -                -                    8,610               (8,610)             - 

   TOTAL Total Fund & General Expenses 518,757       2,841,784        6,264,808       (3,423,024)    45.4%

   TOTAL EXPENSES 962,761       6,941,526        16,836,708     (9,895,182)    41.2%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (127,747)      (2,732,882)       (7,189,448)      4,456,566      

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Tap Fees Received 226,000       1,550,000        3,500,000       (1,950,000)    44.3%

Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (242,000)      (1,001,000)       (3,500,000)      2,499,000      28.6%

Transfer from (to) MRMD -                -                    750,000           (750,000)         - 

Transfer from (to) Other Funds (47,717)        (285,766)          (572,048)         286,282         50.0%

Emergency Reserve (5%) 47,085          282,502            565,000           (282,498)        50.0%

Emergency Reserve ($2) - Sewer 6,048            35,764              72,048             (36,284)          49.6%

Rate Stabilization Reserve (5,417)          (32,500)             (65,000)           32,500           50.0%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (16,000)        549,000            750,000          (201,000)        73.2%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($143,747)    ($2,183,882)     ($6,439,448)   $4,255,566   

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 12,463,790      

ENDING FUND BALANCE $10,279,908    

Operating Capital Fund Balance 7,431,703        

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 1,814,641        

Sewer Reserve Fund Balance $2 366,064            

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 667,500            

Total Fund Balance $10,279,908    

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

SUMMARY OF ALL FUNDS

For the One Month and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 19 of 123



 Month of 

Jun 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance 

Over (Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(50.0% YTD)

REVENUES

IGA - Meridian Ranch -                $260,000     $260,000     -                100.0%

AT&T Lease 1,553            8,800            18,310         (9,510)          48.1%

Newsletter Contrib. 320               2,400            4,800            (2,400)          50.0%

MSMD Office Sub-Lease -                5,339            3,800            1,539            140.5%

Grant Revenue -                240               -                240                - 

Interest Income 55                 548               -                548                - 

Miscellaneous Income -                163               -                163                - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 1,928            277,491       286,910       (9,419)          96.7%

EXPENSES

Accounting -                41                 1,100            (1,059)          3.7%

Audit -                342               14,500         (14,158)        2.4%

Payroll & HR Services 4,449            20,667         43,800         (23,133)        47.2%

Engineering/Consulting 124               850               700               150               121.4%

Legal 5,676            41,533         30,000         11,533         138.4%

Personnel Expenses 1,736            10,428         35,215         (24,787)        29.6%

Copier - Contract Expenses -                1,165            6,605            (5,440)          17.6%

Rent - Shared 3,590            21,498         75,000         (53,502)        28.7%

Telephone & Internet 845               1,238            700               538               176.9%

Telephone & Internet - Shared -                3,812            7,725            (3,913)          49.4%

Utilities - Shared 477               3,355            6,695            (3,340)          50.1%

Supplies 1,016            2,293            3,100            (807)              74.0%

Licenses,Certs & Memberships -                497               1,000            (503)              49.7%

Subscriptions -                55                 700               (645)              7.9%

Bank Charges -                138               500               (362)              27.6%

Public Information -                -                500               (500)               - 

Meals & Entertainment 82                 1,043            200               843               521.6%

Miscellaneous Expense -                315               1,000            (685)              31.5%

COVID Expense -                (160)              3,200            (3,360)          

Insurance 345               2,271            3,500            (1,229)          64.9%

Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 191               1,319            3,000            (1,681)          44.0%

TABOR Emergency Reserve 3% -                -                8,610            (8,610)           - 

   TOTAL EXPENSES 18,530         114,203       257,350       (143,147)      44.4%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($16,602)      $163,287     $29,560       $133,727     

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 66,441         

ENDING FUND BALANCE $229,728     

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

General Fund

For the One Month and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 20 of 123



 Month of 

Jun 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance 

Over 

(Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(50.0% YTD)

REVENUES

Parks & Grounds Fees $76,995       $456,433     $927,150     ($470,717)   49.2%

Street Lighting Fees 14,946         88,412         180,025       (91,613)        49.1%

Billing Fees 1,132            5,266            17,850         (12,584)        29.5%

Grant Revenue -                11,788         35,000         (23,212)        33.7%

Interest Income 0                   36                 -                36                  - 

Miscellaneous Income -                1,817            -                1,817             - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 93,074         563,752       1,160,025   (596,273)      48.6%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting -                154               4,550            (4,396)          3.4%

Customer Billing Services 1,737            10,750         11,040         (290)              97.4%

Engineering/Consulting 468               3,220            3,500            (280)              92.0%

Legal -                117               2,500            (2,383)          4.7%

Personnel Expenses 15,135         69,378         246,875       (177,497)      28.1%

General Operations - Admin 129               7,534            9,900            (2,366)          76.1%

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 17,468         91,154         278,365       (187,211)      32.7%

Landscape Repair & Maint. 44,801         124,112       364,500       (240,388)      34.0%

Hardscape Repair & Maint. -                -                21,000         (21,000)         - 

Park Maint. 279               3,709            27,000         (23,291)        13.7%

Pond Maint. 98                 355               15,000         (14,645)        2.4%

Utilities 13,637         95,311         171,350       (76,039)        55.6%

Insurance 1,548            8,847            12,360         (3,513)          71.6%

Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 461               3,199            15,000         (11,801)        21.3%

   TOTAL Operating Expense 60,825         235,534       626,210       (390,676)      37.6%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle 27,748         37,824         58,900         (21,077)        64.2%

   TOTAL EXPENSES 106,041       364,511       963,475       (598,964)      37.8%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (12,967)        199,241       196,550       2,691           

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer from (to) Other Funds

Transfer from (to) Capital (25,000)        (150,000)      (300,000)      150,000       50.0%

   TOTAL Transfer from (to) Other Funds (25,000)        (150,000)      (300,000)      150,000       50.0%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (25,000)        (150,000)      (300,000)      150,000       50.0%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($37,967)      $49,241       ($103,450)   $152,691     

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 347,868       

ENDING FUND BALANCE $397,109     

Operating Capital Fund Balance 242,105       

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 145,004       

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 10,000         

Total Fund Balance $397,109     

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Parks & Grounds Fund

For the One Month and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 21 of 123



 Month of 

Jun 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance 

Over (Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(50.0% YTD)

REVENUES

Recreation Center Service Fees $149,858     $885,128     $1,804,450    ($919,322)    49.1%

Fee Based Programming 15,470          59,385          60,000           (615)              99.0%

MRRC Concession Sales 396               642               1,000             (358)              64.2%

Falcon Freedom Days Revenue 10,100          10,100          20,000           (9,900)          50.5%

Billing Fees 1,132            5,266            17,850           (12,584)        29.5%

Advertising Fees -                490               3,800             (3,310)          12.9%

Grant Revenue -                32                 -                 32                  - 

Miscellaneous Income -                3,406            -                 3,406             - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 176,957       964,448       1,907,100      (942,652)      50.6%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting -                263               6,700             (6,437)          3.9%

Customer Billing Services 2,953            18,275          18,600           (325)              98.3%

Engineering/Consulting 1,088            6,820            5,000             1,820            136.4%

Legal -                -                5,000             (5,000)           - 

Personnel Expenses 80,850          423,804       970,200         (546,396)      43.7%

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 88,355          483,736       1,053,850      (570,114)      45.9%

Operating Expense

Programming Supplies 5,120            31,525          63,500           (31,975)        49.6%

Building Maint. 13,051          52,908          161,450         (108,542)      32.8%

Grounds Maint. -                -                2,000             (2,000)           - 

Pool Maint. 4,472            15,298          54,050           (38,752)        28.3%

MRRC Security -                2,081            4,000             (1,919)          52.0%

Exercise Equip. & Furn.-Replace 14,555          35,852          40,000           (4,148)          89.6%

MR Community Events 8                   2,043            15,000           (12,957)        13.6%

Falcon Freedom Days Expenses 1,297            1,297            50,000           (48,703)        2.6%

Utilities 10,559          92,275          182,100         (89,825)        50.7%

Insurance 2,226            14,645          18,823           (4,178)          77.8%

Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 106               396               5,500             (5,104)          7.2%

   TOTAL Operating Expense 51,394          248,319       596,423         (348,104)      41.6%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle -                10,076          -                 10,076           - 

   TOTAL EXPENSES 139,749       742,131       1,650,273      (908,142)      45.0%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 37,208          222,317       256,827         (34,510)        

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer from (to) Other Funds

Transfer from (to) Capital (16,668)        (100,001)      (200,000)        99,999          50.0%

Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (4,168)          (25,001)        (50,000)          24,999          50.0%

   TOTAL Transfer from (to) Other Funds (20,835)        (125,002)      (250,000)        124,998       50.0%

Emergency Reserves

Emergency Reserve (5%) 4,168            25,001          50,000           (24,999)        50.0%

   TOTAL Emergency Reserves 4,168            25,001          50,000           (24,999)        50.0%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (16,668)        (100,001)      (200,000)        99,999          50.0%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $20,540       $122,316     $56,827         $65,489       

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 401,338       

ENDING FUND BALANCE $523,654     

Operating Capital Fund Balance 379,075       

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 134,579       

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 10,000          

Total Fund Balance $523,654     

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Recreation Center Fund

For the One Month and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 22 of 123



 Month of 

Jun 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 2021 

Budget 

 Variance 

Over (Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(50.0% YTD)

REVENUES

IGA Shared Water Cost Reimb. 142$             142$                0 142$               - 

IGA Shared Sewer Cost Reimb. 72,000          72,000             0 72,000            - 

Interest Income 162 1,517 0 1,517              - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 72,304         73,659            -                   73,659            - 

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Legal -                -                   10,000             (10,000)           - 

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense -                -                   10,000             (10,000)          - 

Capital Expense - Other

Build-Out CIP & Funding Plan 4,475            99,502             100,000           (498)               95.0%

District Office Yard & Shop -                -                   1,300,000        (1,300,000)     - 

Imp/Mtc Drainage Channels/Ponds -                -                   230,000           (230,000)         - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense - Other 4,475            99,502            1,630,000       (1,530,498)    6.1%

Capital Expense P&G Fund 15

3rd Const & Acq-Winding Walk -                -                   300,000           (300,000)         - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense P&G Fund 15 -                -                   300,000           (300,000)        - 

MRRC Expansion -                -                   50,000             (50,000)           - 

MRRC #2 Rainbow Bridge Dr. -                -                   100,000           (100,000)         - 

Lobby Remodel -                -                   200,000           (200,000)         - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense MRRC Fund 16 -                -                   350,000           (350,000)        - 

Capital Expense Water Fund 40

Guthrie Well Area B & Line Exp -                113                  50,000             (49,888)          0.2%

Expand Filter Plant & Bldg 269               269                  830,000           (829,731)        0.03%

Purchase WHMD 2.0 MG Water Tank -                -                   370,000           (370,000)         - 

ACGC Weir Improvements -                -                   15,000             (15,000)           - 

Well Site No. 5 ,7 & 8 392,789       2,678,683       4,400,000        (1,721,317)    60.9%

Eastonville Raw Water Pipeline 2,614            403,896          450,000           (46,104)          89.8%

Water Rights 18,301          18,301             -                    18,301            - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense Water Fund 40 413,973       3,101,262       6,115,000       (3,013,738)    50.7%

Capital Expense Sewer Fund 50

Lift Station 2020 Improvements -                -                   30,000             (30,000)           - 

Woodmen Hills Sewer Bypass 420               800,601          710,000           90,601           112.8%

WH Sewer Bypass Phase 2 & 3 -                -                   500,000           (500,000)         - 

Mid-Point Injection Station -                -                   20,000             (20,000)           - 

2021 Lift Station Improvements -                -                   35,000             (35,000)           - 

   TOTAL Capital Expense Sewer Fund 50 420               800,601          1,295,000       (494,399)       61.8%

Developer Reimbursements -                -                   750,000           (750,000)         - 

   TOTAL EXPENSES 416,256       4,001,364       10,450,000     (6,448,636)    38.3%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (343,952)      (3,927,705)     (10,450,000)    6,522,295     

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfer from (to) Other Funds

Transfer from (to) MRMD -                -                   750,000           (750,000)         - 

Transfer from (to) P&G Fund 25,000          150,000          300,000           (150,000)        41.7%

Transfer from (to) Rec Fund 16,668          100,001          200,000           (99,999)          41.7%

Transfer from (to) Water Fund 166,668       1,000,001       2,000,000        (999,999)        41.7%

Transfer from (to) Sewer Fund 65,418          392,501          785,000           (392,499)        41.7%

   TOTAL Transfer from (to) Other Funds 273,754       1,642,503       4,035,000       (2,392,497)    40.7%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) 273,754       1,642,503       4,035,000       (2,392,497)    40.7%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($70,199)      ($2,285,202)   ($6,415,000)    $4,129,798   

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 7,538,868       

ENDING FUND BALANCE $5,253,666     

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Capital Fund

For the One Month and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 23 of 123



 Month of 

Jun 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance Over 

(Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(50.0% YTD)

REVENUES

Water Service Fees - Res. $294,712     $1,159,716   $2,541,975   ($1,382,259)   45.6%

Water Service Fees - Comm. 10,450          71,587           142,975         (71,388)           50.1%

Meter Set Fees 7,780            56,390           187,500         (131,110)         30.1%

Irrigation 30,651          74,159           252,550         (178,391)         29.4%

UB - Water Adjustments -                (153)                -                  (153)                  - 

IGA Shared Water Cost Reimb. 110               110                 25,000           (24,890)           0.4%

Billing Fees 1,133            5,266              17,850           (12,584)           29.5%

Miscellaneous Income -                3,991              -                  3,991                - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 344,836       1,371,066     3,167,850     (1,796,784)      43.3%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting -                359                 9,000              (8,641)              4.0%

Customer Billing Services 3,995            24,725           45,000           (20,275)           54.9%

Engineering/Consulting 7,806            44,474           50,000           (5,526)              88.9%

Legal 195               3,809              20,000           (16,192)           19.0%

Personnel Expenses 25,992          174,847         576,825         (401,978)         30.3%

General Operations - Admin 1,923            19,490           25,800           (6,310)              75.5%

   TOTAL General & Admin. Expense 39,911          267,703         726,625         (458,922)         36.8%

Operating Expense

Water Operations General 19,237          34,407           112,785         (78,378)           30.5%

Raw Water Operations 2,493            9,134              53,650           (44,516)           17.0%

Water Treatment Operations 5,463            38,053           65,300           (27,247)           58.3%

Water Distribution Operations 7,963            43,669           229,775         (186,106)         19.0%

Non-Potable Water Operations 2,134            8,253              46,500           (38,247)           17.7%

Utilities 43,453          224,226         499,700         (275,474)         44.9%

Insurance 3,044            20,365           65,000           (44,635)           31.3%

Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 726               3,296              15,000           (11,704)           22.0%

   TOTAL Operating Expense 84,512          381,404         1,087,710     (706,306)         35.1%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle -                40,403           36,500           3,903               110.7%

   TOTAL EXPENSES 124,423       689,509         1,850,835     (1,161,326)      37.3%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES 220,413       681,557         1,317,015     (635,458)         

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Tap Fees Received 113,000       775,000         1,800,000     (1,025,000)      43.1%

Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (121,000)      (500,500)       (1,800,000)    1,299,500       27.8%

Transfer from (to) Capital (166,668)      (1,000,001)    (2,000,000)    999,999           50.0%

Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (24,168)        (145,001)       (290,000)       144,999           50.0%

Transfer from (to) Rate Stabil 3,333            20,000           40,000           (20,000)           50.0%

   TOTAL Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds (195,502)      (850,502)       (2,250,000)    1,399,498       37.8%

Emergency Reserves

Emergency Reserve (5%) 24,168          145,001         290,000         (144,999)         50.0%

Rate Stabilization Reserve (3,333)           (20,000)          (40,000)          20,000             50.0%

   TOTAL Emergency Reserves 20,834          125,001         250,000         (124,999)         50.0%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (174,668)      (725,501)       (2,000,000)    1,274,499       36.3%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE $45,745       ($43,944)       ($682,985)     $639,041        

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 2,611,484     

ENDING FUND BALANCE $2,567,540   

Operating Capital Fund Balance 1,386,786     

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 860,754         

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 320,000         

Total Fund Balance $2,567,540   

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Water Fund

For the One Month and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 24 of 123



 Month of 

Jun 2021  YTD Actual 

 Adopted 

2021 Budget 

 Variance 

Over (Under) 

Budget 

% of Budget 

(50.0% YTD)

REVENUES

Sewer Fees - Res. $142,391     $841,967      $1,718,350   ($876,383)    49.0%

Sewer Fees - Comm. 2,381           14,019          35,000          (20,981)         40.1%

Sterling Ranch Revenue -               36,585          1,251,175     (1,214,590)   2.9%

IGA Shared Sewer Cost Reimb. -               18,787          103,000        (84,213)         18.2%

Billing Fees 1,132           5,266             17,850          (12,584)         29.5%

Interest Income 12                37,268          -                 37,268           - 

Miscellaneous Income -               4,334             -                 4,334             - 

   TOTAL REVENUES 145,916       958,227        3,125,375     (2,167,148)   30.7%

EXPENSES

General & Admin. Expense

Accounting -               255                9,000             (8,745)           2.8%

Customer Billing Services 2,895           17,916          42,000          (24,084)         42.7%

Engineering/Consulting 1,996           54,389          75,000          (20,611)         72.5%

Legal 18,030         357,978        170,000        187,978        210.6%

Personnel Expenses 30,317         183,628        536,525        (352,897)       34.2%

General Operations - Admin 3,372           22,946          27,050          (4,104)           84.8%

Operating Expense

Sewer Operations 84,951         222,486        451,900        (229,414)       49.2%

Lift Station Operations 5,736           66,412          195,100        (128,688)       34.0%

Lift Station Operations-Shared 5,786           70,642          49,300          21,342          143.3%

Utilities 333              2,170             5,400             (3,230)           40.2%

Insurance 2,163           14,226          50,000          (35,774)         28.5%

Vehicle, Equipment & Travel 2,183           6,684             17,000          (10,316)         39.3%

   TOTAL Operating Expense 101,151       382,620        768,700        (386,080)       49.8%

Capital Outlay - Vehicle -               10,076          36,500          (26,424)         27.6%

   TOTAL EXPENSES 157,762       1,029,807     1,664,775     (634,968)       61.9%

   EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER) EXPENSES (11,846)        (71,580)         1,460,600     (1,532,180)   

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds

Tap Fees Received 113,000       775,000        1,700,000     (925,000)       45.6%

Tap Fees Transferred to MRMD (121,000)     (500,500)       (1,700,000)    1,199,500     29.4%

Transfer from (to) Capital (65,418)        (392,501)       (785,000)       392,499        50.0%

Transfer from (to) Emer Reserve (18,750)        (112,500)       (225,000)       112,500        50.0%

Transfer from (to) Emer. ($2) (6,048)          (35,764)         (72,048)         36,284          49.6%

Transfer from (to) Rate Stabil 2,083           12,500          25,000          (12,500)         50.0%

   TOTAL Tap & Transfers from (to) Other Funds (96,132)        (253,765)       (1,057,048)    803,283        24.0%

Emergency Reserves

Emergency Reserve (5%) 18,750         112,500        225,000        (112,500)       50.0%

Emergency Reserve ($2) - Sewer 6,048           35,764          72,048          (36,284)         49.6%

Rate Stabilization Reserve (2,083)          (12,500)         (25,000)         12,500          50.0%

   TOTAL Emergency Reserves 22,715         135,764        272,048        (136,284)       49.9%

   TOTAL Other Financing Sources (Uses) (73,418)        (118,001)       (785,000)       666,999        15.0%

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ($85,264)     ($189,581)     $675,600      ($865,181)    

BEGINNING FUND BALANCE** 1,497,791     

ENDING FUND BALANCE $1,308,210   

Operating Capital Fund Balance (59,658)         

Emergency Reserve Fund Balance 5% 674,304        

Sewer Reserve Fund Balance $2 366,064        

Rate Stabilization Fund Balance 327,500        

Total Fund Balance $1,308,210   

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Change in Fund Balance

Budget vs. Actual - Accrual Basis

Sewer Fund

For the One Month and Six Months Ended June 30, 2021

Management Purposes Only Page 25 of 123



Meridian Service Metropolitan District
2021 Tap Report

Counts Date

Tap 

Receipt 

No. Service Address Filing # Lot # Builder Tap Amt Paid

Meter Amt 

Paid Check No. Monthly Totals

88. 7/7/2021 3330 12883 Stone Valley Drive Stonebridge 3 154 Creekstone Homes LLC $18,000.00 $625.00 ACH (bill.com)

89 7/7/2021 3331 12891 Stone Valley Drive Stonebridge 3 153 Creekstone Homes LLC $18,000.00 $625.00 ACH (bill.com)

90. 7/9/2021 3332 12757 Granite Ridge Drive Stonebridge 4 26 Century Land Holdings $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #453351

91. 7/9/2021 3333 12749 Granite Ridge Drive Stonebridge 4 27 Century Land Holdings $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #453352

92. 7/9/2021 3334 12741 Granite Ridge Drive Stonebridge 4 28 Century Land Holdings $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #453353

93. 7/9/2021 3335 9818 Granite Ridge Drive Stonebridge 4 91 Century Land Holdings $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #453354

94. 7/9/2021 3336 9804 Granite Ridge Drive Stonebridge 4 92 Century Land Holdings $18,000.00 $625.00 Check #453355

95. 7/9/2021 3337 9802 Marble Canyon Way Stonebridge 4 80 Covington Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire/210709106088

96. 7/26/2021 3338 9940 Meridian Hills Trail Stonebridge 4 134 Covington Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire/210726176172

97. 7/26/2021 3339 9948 Meridian Hills Trail Stonebridge 4 135 Covington Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire/210726176172

98. 7/27/2021 3340 9956 Meridian Hills Trail Stonebridge 4 136 Covington Homes $18,000.00 $625.00 Wire/210727118290

99. 7/29/2021 3341 12839 Ranch Gate Dr Stonebridge 4 181 Campbell Homes Prepaid Prepaid

100.00 7/29/2021 3342 12853 Ranch Gate Dr Stonebridge 4 182 Campbell Homes Prepaid Prepaid 13 July

** Reunion Homes prepaid 20 tap fees for a total of $352,000

^^ Campbell Homes prepaid 12 tap fees for a total of $211,200

Tap Receipts backdated 

06/25/21

Page 26 of 123



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

2021 Tap and Meter Set Additional Fees Collected

(Initial) 

Tap 

Purchase 

Date

Tap 

Receipt 

No. Service Address Builder

Tap Fee Paid 

At Time of 

Purchase

Meter Set 

Fee Paid At 

Time of 

Purchase

Additional Tap 

Fees Due (Per 

Current Fee 

Schedule)

Additional Meter 

Set Fee Due (Per 

Current Fee 

Schedule) Date Paid

Total Additional 

Amount Collected Prior 

to Meter Set
2/27/2020 2953 9615 Vistas Park Dr David Weekley Homes 17,000.00$  600.00$   1,000.00$     25.00$                6/7/2021 1,025.00$                   
5/18/2018 2481 9802 Emerald Dr Campbell Homes 15,000.00$  540.00$   3,000.00$     85.00$                6/9/2021 3,085.00$                   
5/21/2018 2488 13679 Evening Sky Dr David Weekley Homes 15,000.00$  540.00$   3,000.00$     85.00$                6/22/2021 3,085.00$                   
8/30/2018 2577 12979 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes 15,000.00$  540.00$   3,000.00$     85.00$                6/25/2021 3,085.00$                   
9/13/2019 2801 10005 Golf Crest Dr Covington Homes 16,000.00$  575.00$   2,000.00$     50.00$                6/29/2021 2,050.00$                   
6/12/2020 3075 9803 Fairway Glen Dr Campbell Homes 17,000.00$  600.00$   1,000.00$     25.00$                6/30/2021 1,025.00$                    $13,355.00 June 2021 

2/15/2019 2701 9853 Emerald Vistas Dr Campbell Homes 16,000.00$  575.00$   2,000.00$     50.00$                7/21/2021 2,050.00$                   
5/21/2018 2489 13667 Evening Sky Dr David Weekley Homes 15,000.00$  540.00$   3,000.00$     85.00$                7/26/2021 3,085.00$                   $5,135.00 July 2021

2021 Total 18,490.00$                 

Page 27 of 123



Date Payment Type Vendor Amount

08/04/21 Vendor Direct ADT SECURITY SERVICES, INC. 109.68$               

08/04/21 ePayment American Portable Services Inc. 118.00$               

08/04/21 Check Aqueous Solution Inc. 3,302.52$            

08/04/21 ePayment BailOut Window Cleaning 30.00$                 

08/04/21 Check Black Hills Energy 3,728.38$            

08/04/21 Vendor Direct BrightView Landscape Services Inc. 38,977.00$          

08/04/21 Check CEBT Payments 11,971.19$          

08/04/21 Check CenturyLink - FP & LS 251.73$               

08/04/21 Check Chase Cardmember Services 10,893.71$          

08/04/21 ePayment Cherokee MD 23,056.72$          

08/04/21 ePayment Chief Petroleum 2,169.30$            

08/04/21 Vendor Direct Comcast - MRRC 414.27$               

08/04/21 Vendor Direct CPS Distributors, Inc 2,108.91$            

08/04/21 Check CRS Community Resource Services 11,579.61$          

08/04/21 Check CSU Colorado Springs Utilities 80.99$                 

08/04/21 Check Discount Tire 1,335.00$            

08/04/21 Check Front Range Winwater 619.73$               

08/04/21 Check Grainger 71.80$                 

08/04/21 Check Home Depot Credit Services 793.42$               

08/04/21 Check Hydro Resources Rocky Mtn. Inc. 177,710.29$        

08/04/21 ePayment Jan-Pro of Southern Colorado 255.00$               

08/04/21 ePayment JDS-Hydro Consultants, Inc. 23,551.45$          

08/04/21 Check John Deere Financial 283.14$               

08/04/21 Vendor Direct Judicial Arbiter Group, Inc. 877.50$               

08/04/21 Check Kings III Emergency Communications 99.00$                 

08/04/21 Check Mug-A-Bug Pest Control 246.00$               

08/04/21 Check MVEA 70,704.71$          

08/04/21 Check Shops at Meridian Ranch, LLC 199.40$               

08/04/21 ePayment Spencer Fane LLP 24,135.00$          

08/04/21 ePayment Starfish Aquatics Institute 129.00$               

08/04/21 Check Tech Builders Inc 6,964.09$            

08/04/21 Check Thatcher Company, Inc 3,877.78$            

08/04/21 ePayment TIAA Commercial Finance, Inc 187.00$               

08/04/21 Vendor Direct Timberline Landscaping, INC 796.36$               

08/04/21 Vendor Direct USA BlueBook 33.26$                 

08/04/21 Vendor Direct Verizon Wireless 249.80$               

08/04/21 Check VertiCloud Networks LLC 3,233.50$            

08/04/21 Check Whisler Industrial Supply 5.16$                   

08/04/21 CK# 13293 VOID -$                     

08/04/21 CK# 13294 VOID -$                     

08/04/21 CK# 13295 David & Marlene Pitts (temp license deposit refund) 1,000.00$            

08/04/21 CK# 13296 Hydro Resources (hydrant meter deposit refund) 1,000.00$            

08/04/21 CK# 13297 Clifton Palamore (customer refund - sold house) 223.91$               

Total Payments 43 Total Amount of Payments 427,373.31$     

Payroll Transactions7/1 - 7/31/2021

BOD Payroll: 538.25$           

Bi-weekly Payroll: 231,679.21$    

Payroll & HR Services: 990.52$           

Total: 233,207.98$    

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Vendor Payment Register Report - Summary
Board Meeting - Payments to Approve

August 4, 2021

Page 28 of 123



Page 29 of 123



MSMD Operations Report for July 2021 
 

During the month of July, well site #5 continues help meet water demand.  LFH-1 well 

back in the ground but intake screen appears to be restricted requiring the well be pulled and 

inspected.  Chemical feed pumps for direct chlorination at Latigo and #8 well sites have been 

installed, still waiting on container delivery.  Latigo and LFH-2 water level sensor install has 

been completed and now visible on SCADA.  Guthrie Ranch  well site #2 had several alarms 

requiring staff to replace a damaged breaker  and several fuses.  Alluvial well also needed 

breakers replaced.  Guthrie Ranch well site #1, Arapahoe well flow meter replaced but well 

supply is erratic and will be considered for rehab over the winter.  Guthrie Ranch well building 

improvements continue.  Mid-point building electrical improvements are nearly 99% completed 

and waiting on final RBD approval.  Water Ops staff assembled and plumbed new chlorine 

monitoring equipment with only finish wiring remaining.  Fiber internet has been installed at 

the filter plant and 90% completed.  Water operations completed the monthly Bac-T per CDPHE 

monitoring requirements.  Lead and Copper testing results have been received and will be sent 

out to the resident sample locations the first week in August.  Monthly water meter reads were 

collected on July 26th.  Water and sewer locates along with new meter installations have begun 

to slow a bit.   

Parks and drainage continued weekly pond inspections and removed silt collected in the 

channel at the big pond by the high school.  Parks and Drainage staff are maintaining consistent 

contact with Oolganik regarding damaged irrigation repairs.  A replacement slide for Greens 

Park has been ordered and will be replaced once received.  Replacement cost will be covered 

under the manufacturer warranty.  Greens Park also had some vandalism in the form of graffiti 

that needed to be removed.  With the help of a resident owned removal company, the graffiti 

was quickly removed.  Crews continued with irrigation and mainline repairs.  Approximately 200 

ft of 3 inch mainline damaged from directional drilling, has been replaced with no leaks.  

Trouble-shooting controller issues has been challenging and continues.  Dead tree removal 

scheduled for week of August 2nd with a 35 yd roll off dumpster to be delivered on Aug 5th.   

Staff performed weekly infiltration gallery inspections and recorded water level logging 

data.  Area #5 was in overflow throughout most of July.  Winding Walk infiltration pit requires 

an overflow be installed to help with drainage.  Utility locates in the area have cleared the 

location and installation is scheduled for the week of Aug 2nd. 

Irrigation Pond received another round of water treatment including algaecide and dye 

on July 30th.  Water level has been able to meet golf course demand. 

Wastewater operations completed weekly composite sampling and drop off to 

Cherokee for testing.  Weekly Hydrogen Sulfide (H2S) and Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) samples 

were collected along with weekly sewer flow meter inspections.  Bar screen replacement 

scheduled to ship week of July 26th.  The sewer bypass line splitting manhole remaining items 

are pending the contractor availability.  As of Aug 1st, no work has been scheduled.  Crews 

performed line cleaning in the Estates and continue from the Rec Center area heading south.  

The combo truck was also used to empty the manhole septic tank at the filter plant. 

  

Page 30 of 123



 

Upcoming or continued water tasks: 

• Monthly meter reading (completed 7-26-21) 

• Well site #7 test 

• Latigo and well site #8 raw water bypass cut in. 

• Annual generator service (August) 

 

Upcoming or continued parks and drainage: 

• Continue irrigation repairs/testing (in progress) 

• Annual backflow testing (pending) 

• Continue fence repairs (in progress) 

• Mulch/rock replacement in planter beds (in progress) 

• Dead tree removal (week of Aug 2nd, dumpster scheduled for Aug 5th) 

 

Upcoming or continued wastewater tasks: 

• Sewer force main air vac maintenance/vault inspections (in progress) 

• Sewer force main flow meter replacement (line tapped, awaiting install) 

• Lift station bar screen repair (parts ordered, expected ship date of 7-26-21) 

• Infiltration pit maintenance (pending weather, in progress) 

• Infiltration pit logger installs (2) (pending weather, in progress) 

• Begin recruitment for vacant wastewater position (in progress) 

• Annual generator service (August) 

 

Page 31 of 123



July 7th, 2021 Recreation Board Report  

 

Usage Numbers July 1, 2021 – June 31, 2021 

Total Attendance – 14,982 

Group Ex – 590 participants. Of those we received $412 from non-members 

Childcare attendance - 247 

Revenue collected - $15,925.00 

 

Pulse Check:  

 Recreation center attendance remained consistent and busy throughout July. We had very 

hot and dry weather which brought members out to the pool. Group exercise participation is 

steady, and we are expecting that to pick back up once D49 kids are back in school. 

  The August newsletter was developed at the recreation center by Rachel Blamey and 

looks great. We were able to create the newsletter with no setbacks. I will be working with 

residents and other departments within Meridian to ensure all our content is up to date and 

relevant for the needs of the community.  

 T-Ball and Coach pitch are going well, and the weather has been mostly cooperating. We 

will be adding one additional week to the season to make up for a stormy day of games that were 

cut short. Our basketball camp went very well, and we are excited to continue cooperative events 

with Woodmen Hills. Swim lessons are continuing to have strong participation and are running 

well. Childcare mini camps were very successful this summer with zero incidents.  

 Our plan is to keep the outdoor pool open through September to utilize the nice weather 

and provide members the option of the outdoor pool. We see in increase in usage from the older 

age group of members as soon as the children go back to school, and they greatly appreciate 

being able to use the outdoor pool without many children present. Our closing date is tentatively 

set for Oct 3, pending weather.  

  

   

 

   

  

 

Page 32 of 123



Page 33 of 123



Page 34 of 123



Page 35 of 123



Page 36 of 123



Page 37 of 123



Page 38 of 123



Page 39 of 123



Page 40 of 123



Page 41 of 123



Page 42 of 123



Page 43 of 123



Page 44 of 123



Page 45 of 123



Page 46 of 123



Page 47 of 123



Page 48 of 123



Page 49 of 123



Page 50 of 123



Page 51 of 123



Page 52 of 123



Page 53 of 123



Page 54 of 123



Page 55 of 123



Page 56 of 123



Page 57 of 123



Page 58 of 123



Page 59 of 123



Page 60 of 123



Page 61 of 123



Page 62 of 123



Page 63 of 123



Buildout Financial Master Plan 
PROPOSAL / JULY 1, 2021 

Meridian 
Service Metropolitan District 

 

Page 64 of 123



  
 
 
 

 
 
 

01 
Letter of Interest 
 

02 
Statement of Qualifications 
 

07 
Technical Proposal and 
Schedule 
 
 

Table of 
Contents 

Cover photo courtesy of Kent Kanouse (Flickr). 

Page 65 of 123



 RAFTELIS 1 

 
 

 

 
 
 
July 1, 2021 
 
Mr. David Pelser 
General Manager 
Meridian Service Metropolitan District 
11886 Stapleton Drive 
Falcon, CO 80831 
 
Subject: Proposal for Buildout Financial Master Plan  
 
Dear Mr. Pelser: 
 
Raftelis is pleased to submit this proposal to assist Meridian Service Metropolitan District (MSMD or District) with its 
water, wastewater, and property tax financial planning. We are confident you will find our qualifications and experience 
within the water and wastewater utility industry makes us uniquely qualified to meet the District’s goals and objectives. 
  
Things that set Raftelis apart include:  

• Prior rate study work performed on your behalf provides a valuable basis of information from the start. Fresh 
eyes from skilled analysts who have not served the District provides a valuable opportunity to innovate.  

• We build new financial and rate models for every client—even returning clients. Our thinking will be fresh and 
innovative while allowing us to incorporate industry best practices that have evolved since the last study was 
performed.  

• We understand the unique needs of being a special district, among these, the need to balance sources of funding 
that are out of the District’s control (e.g., property tax valuations) and the need to maintain revenue stability and 
customer affordability.  

• Some bidders may be tempted to keep costs low by skimping on project management hours, but our approach 
envisions me—as an experienced Project Manager—remaining close, with my sleeves up in a very active and 
involved role. This is the sort of attention you deserve.  

  
We are proud of the resources that we can offer and welcome the opportunity to assist the District on this engagement. 
Should you have any questions, please contact me using the following information:  
  
Sincerely,  
 
 
  
Todd Cristiano  
Senior Manager (Individual authorized to make contract commitments) 
P: 303.305.1136 | E: tcristiano@raftelis.com  

 

LETTER OF INTEREST 

Page 66 of 123



 RAFTELIS 2 

 
 

Firm Overview 
RAFTELIS IS THE TRUSTED ADVISOR TO UTILITIES 
AND THE PUBLIC SECTOR. 
 
Raftelis provides utilities and public-sector organizations 
with insights and expertise to help them operate as high-
performing, sustainable entities providing essential 
services to their citizens. We help our clients solve their 
financial, organizational, technology, and 
communication challenges, achieve their objectives, 
and, ultimately, make their communities better places to 
live, work, and play. 
 

RESOURCES & EXPERTISE 

This project will require the resources necessary to 
effectively staff the project and the skillsets to complete 
all of the required components. With more than 120 
consultants, Raftelis has the largest water-industry 
financial and management consulting practice in the 
nation. Our depth of resources will allow us to provide 
the District with the technical expertise necessary to 
meet your objectives.  
 

DEFENSIBLE RECOMMENDATIONS 

When your elected officials and customers are 
considering the validity and merit of recommended 
changes, they want to be confident that they were 
developed by experts using the latest industry standard 
methodology. Our senior staff is involved in shaping 
industry standards by chairing various committees 
within the American Water Works Association 
(AWWA) and the Water Environment Federation 
(WEF). Raftelis’ staff members have also co-authored 
many industry standard books regarding utility finance 
and rate setting. Being so actively involved in the 
industry will allow us to keep the District informed of 
emerging trends and issues and to be confident that our 
recommendations are insightful and founded on sound 
industry principles. In addition, with Raftelis’ 
registration as a Municipal Advisor, you can be 
confident that we are fully qualified and capable of 
providing financial advice related to all aspects of 

utility financial planning in compliance with federal 
regulations. 
 

HISTORY OF SIMILAR SUCCESSES 

An extensive track record of past similar work will help 
to avoid potential pitfalls on this project and provide the 
know-how to bring it across the finish line. Raftelis staff 
has assisted 1,000+ utilities throughout the U.S. with 
financial and rate consulting services with wide-ranging 
needs and objectives.  
 

USER-FRIENDLY MODELING 

A modeling tool that your staff can use for scenario 
analysis and financial planning now and into the future 
will be key for the District going forward. Raftelis has 
developed some of the most sophisticated yet user-
friendly financial/rate models available in the industry. 
Our models are non-proprietary and are developed with 
the expectation that they will be used by the client as a 
financial planning tool long after the project is complete. 
 

RATES THAT ARE ADOPTED 

For the study to be a success, rates must be successfully 
approved and implemented. Raftelis has assisted 
numerous agencies with getting proposed rates 
successfully adopted. We focus on effectively 
communicating with elected officials about the financial 
consequences and rationale behind recommendations to 
ensure stakeholder buy-in and successful rate adoption. 
 
 

Our Subconsultant 
JVA, Inc. is a structural, civil, and environmental 
consulting engineering firm headquartered in Boulder, 
Colorado. JVA is well-versed in handling a variety of 
engineering projects and has successfully produced 
master plans for many municipalities and districts.  

 

STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 

Page 67 of 123



 RAFTELIS 3 

 
 

 
 

Project Team 
WE HAVE DEVELOPED A TEAM OF CONSULTANTS WHO SPECIALIZE 
IN THE SPECIFIC ELEMENTS THAT WILL BE CRITICAL TO THE 
SUCCESS OF THE DISTRICT’S PROJECT. 

Our team includes senior-level professionals to provide experienced project leadership with support from talented 
consultant staff. This close-knit group has frequently collaborated on similar successful projects, providing the District 
confidence in our capabilities. 
 
Here, we have included an organizational chart showing the structure of our project team. In Appendix A, we have 
included resumes for each of our team members as well as a description of their role on the project. 
 

 

  

SUBJECT MATTER EXPERT (JVA) 

Capi ta l  p lanning,  cost  es t imat ing,  
a l ternat ives analys is  

Andrew Sparn 
(Denver Metro Office) 

 

MERIDIAN 
SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

STAFF CONSULTANTS 

3 Consultant-level staff 
(specific staff to be determined 

at project initiation) 
 

TECHNICAL ADVISOR 

Andrew Rheem  
(Denver Metro Office) 

PROJECT MANAGER 

Todd Cristiano 
 (Denver Metro Office) 

STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS 
(OPTIONAL) 

Matt Wittern, APR, PMP 
(Denver Metro Office) 

 

Page 68 of 123



 RAFTELIS 4 

 
 

 

 

Relevant Project 
Experience 
RAFTELIS HAS THE MOST EXPERIENCED UTILITY FINANCIAL AND 
MANAGEMENT CONSULTING PRACTICE IN THE NATION. 

Our staff has assisted more than 1,200 public agencies and utilities across the U.S., including some 
of the largest and most complex agencies in the nation. In the past year alone, Raftelis worked on 
more than 900 financial/organizational/technology consulting projects for over 600 agencies in 44 
states, the District of Columbia, and Canada. In Appendix B, we have included example project 
descriptions and references for several similar past projects. 
  

THIS MAP AND THE MATRIX ON 
THE FOLLOWING PAGES SHOW 
SOME OF THE UTILITY CLIENTS 
THAT WE HAVE ASSISTED. 

Raftelis has provided financial/ 
organizational/technology assistance 

to utilities serving more than 
 
25 

 
% 

 

of the U.S. 
population 

 
Page 69 of 123



 RAFTELIS 5 

 
 

 

 
  

Page 70 of 123



 RAFTELIS 6 

 
 

 
  

Page 71 of 123



 RAFTELIS 7 

 
 

Technical Approach / Scope of Work 
Project Understanding 
Based on our review of the RFP and other documents on the District’s website, we understand MSMD is completing a 
Buildout Water/Wastewater Master Plan CIP which identifies the necessary infrastructure to serve future development 
within the District. Supporting this is a Buildout Financial Master Plan study to address the financial aspects of funding 
this Master Plan while maintaining rates and fees to fund operations. We imagine areas of funding may include: 

• Refinancing/restructuring existing debt obligations 
• Additional GO bond sales and/or revenue bonds 
• Additional developer advances 
• Increases in service fees and/or tap fees 
• Contract revenues such as IGAs, or the sales/lease of surplus capacity to others 

 
The financial activities in two MSMD funds are integral to this study:  

• The debt fund – comprised of a number of bonds and loans which fund a variety of projects improving water and 
wastewater infrastructure. 

• The water and wastewater proprietary funds, for which tap fee sales and property taxes are the primary sources of 
repayment for the utility portion of debt. The water utility currently has $7.0 million of bonding capacity, while 
wastewater has no available bonding capacity.  

 
Conversely, the water and wastewater utility funds held by MSMD track those activities or expenditures which are 
funded primarily by rate revenues. The recent budgets and annual statements suggest that the water and wastewater 
utilities are meeting expenditures with sufficient undesignated reserves for future capital and operating needs. 
 
The District’s Financial Balancing Act 
A key element in this study will be identifying the correct balance of loans, 
bonds, and tap fees to fund MSMD’s growth-related infrastructure.  

• General Obligation (GO) bonds offer a number of benefits, 
including potentially lower interest rates, but they require a vote of 
the citizens to satisfy Colorado’s TABOR Law.  

• On the other hand, revenue bonds may be issued without a vote, but 
must be backed by water and wastewater utility revenues.  

• In addition, revenue bonds require maintaining reserve targets and 
debt service coverage which may lead to an increase in rates.  

• Finally, developer advances are another funding option, though 
those may come at higher interest rates. 

 
A Project Approach as Unique as MSMD 
Raftelis’ approach is tailored to the needs of each project and client. We take pride in having a deep bench of expertise 
beyond just the project team to provide our clients the best value and expertise. Our clients value our ability to collect, 
synthesize, and validate the pertinent data and tease out critical insights that inform our analysis. Rather than taking any 
data at face value, we compare it against other sources to check for reasonableness and ensure its accuracy. 
 
Another important part of a successful study is regular communication. During the kick-off meeting, we will establish 
communication protocols based on what works best for you. Further, we propose providing two points of contact – the 
project manager and the lead analyst. This ensures that we can be responsive to the MSMD’s needs. 

TECHNICAL PROPOSAL AND SCHEDULE 

Funding 
Sources

Financial 
Risk

Debt Payments

Higher Interest 
Rates

Strict Financial 
Perfoamnce 

Increased User 
Charges

Property Taxes

Tap Fees

Rate Revenue

Revenue Bonds/
GO Bonds

Page 72 of 123



 RAFTELIS 8 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

     

Major Objectives 
 

 

Task 1: Project Initiation/Project Management 
Work Plan Activities 
Project Management 

• Provide timely invoices, regular calls with the District’s project manager, and identify milestones and 
deliverables 

Prior to the Kick-off meeting 
• Provide data request in advance of project initiation meeting 
• Review the latest draft report of the JDS Hydro Water/Wastewater Buildout CIP 

Project Initiation Meeting 
• Schedule on-site meeting to discuss policy objectives that may affect the study (e.g., reserve policies, debt 

service coverage requirements, etc.) 
• Review outstanding data request items 
• Review the MSMD capital expenditures 2022 to buildout and identify any changes to the timing and cost of 

the projects 
• Discuss the functional requirements to be included in the financial model. 

Initial 
Analysis 

Develop 
Options 

Vet 
Options 

Approval 
Process 

Project 
Start 

Review available 
documents prior to 
project initiation 
meeting.  
 
Set goals and 
objectives – what 
does success look 
like to the District. 
 

Develop utility 
financial model and 
general fund debt 
model. 
 
Evaluate Buildout 
Capital Improvement 
Plan. 
 
Review funding 
options – GO, 
Revenue bonds, 
state loans, 
developer advances. 
 
Ensure selected 
funding meets 
financial policies and 
District goals 
Submit technical 
memorandum 
summarizing results. 

Evaluate various 
funding options 
through scenario 
analysis – options 
must be actionable – 
within the boundaries 
of the District’s goals 
and objectives. 
 
Balance financial 
needs of the District 
while maintaining the 
utility level of service 
and minimizing 
financial risk and 
customer bill 
impacts. 

Ensure plans are 
sustainable through 
buildout. 

Present interim 
findings to District 
staff and Finance 
Committee. 
 
Submit technical 
memoranda for 
review and comment 
by District. 
 
Compare scenario 
outcomes against 
objectives identified 
in the kick-off 
meeting. 

Prepare final results 
for District staff and 
memorialize findings 
in final technical 
memorandum and 
rate model. 

Page 73 of 123



 RAFTELIS 9 

 
 

 

Task 2: Review of Buildout Capital Master Plan 
Work Plan Activities 
• JVA subconsultant to review the JDS Hydro of Colorado Springs Buildout Master Plan  
• With assistance from District staff, JVA to develop capital improvement program alternatives considering timing 

alternatives and costing options  
• Incorporate pricing estimates considering project timeline – design, permitting, and construction into the final cost 

estimates 
 
Deliverables 
• Develop technical memorandum summarizing the Buildout Capital Improvement Plan including costs and 

schedule 

 
 

Task 3: Financial Planning Models 
Work Plan Activities 
Water and Wastewater Utilities Financial Planning Cash Flow 
• Review current fiscal policies, provide recommendations if needed, and incorporate into financial planning 

analysis 
• Estimate buildout period for the purposes of developing the long-range cash flow analysis 
• Develop separate cash flows for the water and wastewater utilities 
 
Revenue and Fee Projections  
• Tabulate and summarize monthly billing data by customer class for the water and wastewater utilities 
• Calculate number of bills, accounts, and by meter size 
• Project water demands and wastewater billable flow considering growth and changes in use per account 
• Forecast water revenue under existing rates using the projected demand and billable flow projections multiplied 

by the usage per account 
• Forecast water and wastewater tap fee revenue (facility fees) and the amount of fee revenue to be transferred to 

the Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District for paying debt service 
 

Expenditures Projections 
• Forecast O&M, R&R capital, expansion capital (based on master plan results), existing and proposed debt 

service. Incorporate new positions, changes in operating efficiencies, etc. 
• Use buildout capital planning model to forecast projects to be funded by tap fees and repair and replacement 

projects 
• Develop debt financing plan by identifying projects eligible for bond or state loans based on timing, duration, and 

amount of project; work with state to determine loan parameters available – term, interest rate, debt service 
coverage, etc.); identify whether these bond issues will be funded through the water or wastewater utility or 
through a mill levy on property taxes; and identify opportunities for bond refunding 

• Evaluate different types of debt financing and the impact to rates based on performance metrics needed to meet 
bond covenants (i.e., GO bonds vs revenue bonds vs. State loans, etc.) 

• Evaluate different loan pay-off strategies and the impact on revenue increases 
 
Optimized Financial Plan Cash Flows 
• Develop ‘optimal’ revenue requirement financial plan balancing mix of cash funding, debt financing capital 

projects while meeting reserve targets and debt service coverage requirements, and minimizing revenue 
increases 

• Calculate annual rate revenue adjustments needed through the study period (these optimal financing plans will 
identify shortfalls and the adjustments required to reduce or eliminate the deficiencies) 
 

Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District Debt Fund Cash Flow 
• Review current fiscal policies, provide recommendations if needed and incorporate into financial planning 

analysis 

Page 74 of 123



 RAFTELIS 10 

 
 

• Estimate buildout period for the purposes of developing the long-range cash flow analysis 
• Using buildout plan projections and information from El Paso County, project mill levy assessment and property 

tax revenues for the study period based on building projections. 
• Project a schedule of anticipated property taxes throughout buildout 
• Determine level of debt payments associated with funding water and wastewater infrastructure and the level of 

property taxes and tap fee revenue needed to support those payments over the study period 
• Evaluate need to adjust mil levy levels to meet the annual debt requirements in absence of sufficient tap fee 

revenue 
• Develop ‘optimal’ cash flow plan balancing mix of tap fee revenue, debt financing capital projects while meeting 

reserve targets and debt service coverage requirements (if necessary) 
• Calculate annual property tax adjustments needed through the study period (these optimal financing plans will 

identify shortfalls and the adjustments required to reduce or eliminate the deficiencies) 
 
Deliverables 
• First Model Run Technical Memorandum: Shows the capital costs by year, revenue by year, and anticipated 

funding shortfalls 
• Alternatives Approaches Technical Memorandum: Summary of model results from alternative funding plans to 

eliminate shortfalls using service fees increases, tap fee increases, and additional debt 
• Financial Planning Workshop: Attend workshop with MSMD Staff and the Board’s Finance Committee to 

explain the model and the alternative financing plans 
• Draft Buildout Financial Plan Technical Memorandum: Revise model to respond to MSMD comments 
• Final Buildout Financial Plan Technical Memorandum: Incorporate comments from workshop into final 

memorandum 
• Final Report: Summarize findings from study and memorialize into final report for the District’s records 
• Final Model: Finalize model and provide to District for their use 

 
 
 
 

  

Page 75 of 123



 RAFTELIS 11 

 
 

Schedule and Deliverables 
Raftelis will complete the scope of services within the timeframe shown in the schedule below. The proposed schedule 
assumes a notice-to-proceed by the beginning of August 2021 and that Raftelis will receive the needed data in a timely 
manner and be able to schedule meetings as necessary. Projects of this size and complexity often take approximately four 
months to complete. We have scheduled meetings leading up to the draft Buildout Financial Plan Technical 
Memorandum to be completed prior to the October 15 budget submittal deadline. This will allow District staff to 
incorporate any preliminary findings into the draft 2022 budget. In addition, we anticipate completion prior to the final 
adoption of the 2022 budget to capture any recommendations from the study. 
 

 
 

Scope of Work Deliverables  
  

1. Project Initiation/Project Management Aug 9 
2. Buildout Master Plan Review Aug 9 - Aug 27 

Task 2 Deliverables   
2a. Technical Memorandum Aug 30 

3. Financial Planning Models Aug 9 - Dec 17 
Task 3 Deliverables   

3a. First Model Run Technical Memorandum Sept 9 
3b. Alternatives Approaches Technical Memorandum Sept 20 
3c. Financial Planning Workshop Oct 4 
3d. Draft Buildout Financial Plan Technical Memorandum Oct 18 
3e. Final Buildout Financial Plan Technical Memorandum Nov 1 
3f. Final Report Nov 8 
3g. Final Model Nov 29 

 

Week Beginning-> Aug 2021 Sep 2021 Oct 2021 Nov 2021

Task Description 8/2 8/9 8/16 8/23 8/30 9/6 9/13 9/20 9/27 10/4 10/11 10/18 10/25 11/1 11/8 11/15 11/22 11/29

1. Project Initiation/Project Management

2. Buildout Master Plan Review

Task 2 Deliverables
2a. Techical Memoradum

3. Financial Planning Models

Task 3 Deliverables
3a. First Model Run Technical Memorandum
3b.  Alternatives Approaches Technical 
Memorandum

3c. Financial Planning Workshop

3d. Draft Buildout Financial Plan Technical 
Memorandum
3e. Final Buildout Financial Plan Technical 
Memorandum

3f. Final Report

3g. Final Model

         In-Person Meetings / Workshops

          Deliverables

Draft Budget Documents to Governing Board Deadline - October 15

Page 76 of 123



 RAFTELIS 12 

 
 

Labor Hours 
The following table includes a breakdown of labor hours indicating each task and subtask and the estimated hours by 
each individual working on the project.  
 
 

 
 
 

  

Page 77 of 123



 RAFTELIS 13 

 
 

 
Todd Cristiano 
PROJECT MANAGER 
Senior Manager  
 

ROLE 

Todd will manage the day-to-day aspects of the project ensuring it is within 
budget, on schedule, and effectively meets the District’s objectives. He will also 
lead the consulting staff in conducting analyses and preparing deliverables for the 
project. Todd will serve as the District’s main point of contact for the project. 
 

PROFILE 

Todd has nearly 20 years of utility finance experience—14 years as a consultant 
to utilities and 6 years as the Manager of Rates at Denver Water. He has 
completed studies across the U.S. for water, wastewater, stormwater, electric, and 
gas utilities. His experience covers technical areas and industries such as 
municipal fee development, utility cost-of-service and rate structure studies, 
economic feasibility analyses, impact fee studies, and budget processes. While at 
Denver Water, he oversaw four significant rate- and fee-related studies, all 
unanimously approved by the Board of Water Commissioners, and also served as 
interim budget manager at Denver Water. As a member of the AWWA, he has 
helped to develop industry guidelines regarding financial and rate-making 
practices. In particular, as the current Chair of the AWWA Rates and Charges 
Committee, he co-authored the water reuse chapter in the latest edition of Manual 
M1, Principles of Water Rates, Fees and Charges. Todd is also co-instructor for the 
AWWA’s biennial Financial Management: Cost-of-Service Rate-Making 
Seminar. 
 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

City of Golden (CO) 
The City of Golden (City) provided water, sewer, and drainage services to 
approximately 5,400 customers through separate self-supporting enterprise funds. 
Rates charged for services must be adequate to support maintenance and 
operations, debt service, capital improvements, asset reinvestment, and transfers 
for general administration. 
 
This City requested a comprehensive financial and rate analysis on their water, wastewater, and stormwater utilities. 
They wished to focus on the rate structures, updates to the cost-of-service with recommendations on the best alternatives 
for equitable and sustainable revenue recovery by each customer class. The last cost-of-service study was completed over 
10 years ago. 
 
Also part of this study was convening a Utility Rate Citizens Committee (URCC) to review and provide 
recommendations on rate alternatives based on identified pricing objectives. Raftelis developed rate alternatives for each 
utility. 

Specialties 
• Financial planning 
• Cost-of-service & rate structure 

studies 
• Litigation support 
• Economic feasibility analyses 
• Impact fee studies - utility & non-

utility 
• Reviews of policies, procedures, & 

operating practices 
• Budget processes 

Professional History 
• Raftelis: Senior Manager (2019-

present); Manager  
• (2017-2018) 
• Stantec (2016-2017) 
• Denver Water: Manager of Rates 

(2010-2016) 
• Malcolm Pirnie-Arcadis-US  
• (2005-2010) 
• Black & Veatch (1998-2005) 

Education 
• Master of Business Administration 
•  - University of Colorado (2003) 
• Bachelor of Science in Chemical 

Engineering - University of Tulsa 
(1995) 

Professional Memberships 
• AWWA: Chair of Rates & Charges 

Committee 
• WEF 

Appendix A: Project Team Resumes 
APPENDIX A: PROJECT TEAM RESUMES 

Page 78 of 123



 RAFTELIS 14 

 
 

 
Raftelis prepared financial plans, cost-of-service analysis, and rate design for each utility. Using the pricing objectives 
from the URCC, we developed three alternatives for water, two for wastewater, and two for stormwater. 
 
For stormwater, of particular interest was improving the equity between residential and commercial customer classes. 
The existing residential fee is on a per dwelling unit basis and commercial is based on individual impervious area. Raftelis 
developed a impervious area fee for both residential and commercial. This increased the residential fee and reduced the 
commercial fee. The City adopted the new rates and rate structures for 2020. 
 

Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District (CO) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The Three Lakes Water and Sanitation District (District) 
requested a 10-year financial plan and an update to their tap fees. The District is facing a significant upgrade to its 
wastewater treatment plant as a result of new copper compliance regulations. Raftelis developed a 10-year cash flow 
which incorporated the enterprise fund as well as their general government funds (general government funds fund a 
portion of administration expenses). The financial planning projections indicated that revenue adjustments of 3.5% were 
needed annually over the study period, assuming a state loan would fund 100% of the copper compliance project in 2019. 
Raftelis also updated their tap fees which had remained unchanged since 2009. Because the District has capacity available 
in its existing system, the buy-in replacement cost new methodology was used. During District Board meetings, Directors 
expressed concern that the proposed fee was greater than the cost to install an individual septic system. Todd presented to 
the Board three times over the course of six months. The last presentation included the conclusive results of our study. 
The Board adopted a 6.0% increase for the following year with the anticipation of 3.5% in future years. The tap fee was 
left at the current levels. Raftelis also provided a rate model for the District to use going forward. 
 

Bancroft-Clover Water District (CO) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. Bancroft-Clover Water and Sanitation District (District) is a 
wholesale customer of Denver Water. They are located west of the City of Denver’s boundary and serve approximately 
8,000 accounts, most of which are residential customers. The District retained Raftelis to conduct a water and sewer 
financial plan analysis in 2017. Of concern was the District’s ability to cash fund an anticipated wastewater master plan 
as well as ongoing water repair and replacement projects. He oversaw the development of revenue projections based on 
historical billing records and the projection of operating and capital expenditures. Todd also provided insight on 
maintaining sufficient operating and capital reserve levels. Todd presented the findings to the Board of Directors in 
October 2017. The Board adopted the proposed rate adjustments in December 2018.  
 
The District retained Raftelis to complete a comprehensive water and wastewater cost-of-service and tap fee study in 
2018. Of interest to the District was to ensure equity among the customer classes. In addition, the District wanted the 
cost-of-service analysis and rate design to incorporate the continued gradual reduction in water usage from all customer 
classes. Todd developed the cost-of-service in accordance with generally accepted rate setting principles and adjusted the 
allocations to meet District-specific operational parameters. Todd developed several water and wastewater rate design 
alternatives for the Board’s consideration. The Board requested additional analysis which resulted in the adoption of 
modified versions of the Raftelis proposed alternatives. 
 
Todd also developed water and wastewater tap fees. The District’s tap fees were last updated in 2001. Raftelis developed 
the fees using the buy-in approach as well as the unit cost replacement method using replacement cost estimates from the 
District’s latest master plan. The fees under these methodologies represented the maximum supportable fee. Because of 
the large increase, the District adopted fees based on inflating the current fees to today’s dollars. 
 

Page 79 of 123



 RAFTELIS 15 

 
 

City of Durango (CO) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The City of Durango (City) retained Raftelis to conduct a 
comprehensive, independent assessment of its water and wastewater utilities and provide recommendations on revenue 
adjustments, cost of service and rate design. The City’s broad objective of the study was to adequately fund water and 
wastewater utility operations, foreseeable capital costs, and any future bonded debt, which will be supported by the 
proposed rates. The study included a comprehensive review of the City’s water and wastewater funds and budgets, an 
inventory of the water and wastewater capital assets, customer classes, current usage data, future planned service area 
growth, and any other information deemed necessary. This analysis included a review and update of the City’s water and 
wastewater plant investment fees. The City also requested a review of the rate differential between inside City and outside 
City customers. 
 
The City’s last comprehensive study was completed in 2014 which recommended large rate adjustments to fund an 
upcoming wastewater treatment construction project and a water treatment plant. The wastewater treatment plant is 
nearing completion and the City has continued to focus efforts on ongoing repair and replacement. The water plant is 
projected to be constructed over the next few years. Its primary purpose is to provide redundancy and provide for some 
growth in the system. The water capital program also included ongoing repair and replacement projects. Raftelis prepared 
several water financial plan alternatives for staff’s review and review by the City’s Public Utility Commission’s 
stakeholder group. Raftelis also developed cost-of-service-based rates for inside and outside City water and wastewater 
customers. As an alternative, Raftelis also developed outside City rates based on a rate differential (i.e. higher rates for 
outside City). This rate was developed based on the premise that the density of customers outside the City was lower than 
inside City. This lower density required more distribution infrastructure to serve outside City customers. Raftelis 
calculated a density ratio for inside and outside City customers based on the number of accounts per length of main. This 
ratio was applied to distribution-related costs in the cost-of-service analysis to arrive at a rate differential for inside and 
outside City customers. 
 
Raftelis also updated the City’s plant investment fees considering the replacement costs of current assets. Because there is 
sufficient capacity in the current system, no future expansion costs were included in the fee. The ¾-inch meter 
equivalency used to develop the ¾-inch meter fee was based on peak demand for all ¾-inch meter water users and ¾-inch 
meter average winter flows for wastewater. 
 

Town of Eagle (CO) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The Town had retained a consultant in 2016 to develop a 
financial plan and rate design for their water utility. Following iterations of the report and feedback from stakeholders, 
the Town requested Raftelis to conduct a peer review of the Excel model, results, and provide any recommendations on 
the study. Raftelis worked with the Town’s consultant, reviewed detailed billing data, financials, rate design options and 
the Excel model’s structure. Overall, Raftelis found the assumptions and results of the model sound, accurately 
documented, and the financial plan projections were reasonable based on the assumptions provided by the Town. We 
provided comments on the Consultant’s rate design options as they related to meeting conservation goals, equity, and 
impact to customers. We provided a technical memorandum summarizing our results. This memorandum was presented 
to the Town’s Board of Trustees for review and comment. 
 

City of Craig (CO) 
Todd served as project manager on this engagement. Todd also served as project manager on a similar study completed 
for the City of Craig (City) in 2008. The City retained Raftelis to conduct a comprehensive water and wastewater rate 
study. Increased federal regulations for the wastewater utility were going to significantly impact the rates over the next 10 
years. Regulatory and replacement wastewater treatment plant projects included new sludge ponds, equalization basin, 
and clarifier improvements. In addition, both the water and wastewater utilities were facing increased repair and 
replacement costs. The water utility had projected over $7.5 million in distribution system and tank repairs. The 

Page 80 of 123



 RAFTELIS 16 

 
 

wastewater utility had an estimated $3.6 million in collection system improvements. Compounding these project costs 
was the lack of growth in the City. Raftelis developed separate 10-year cash flows for each utility and examined various 
alternatives for state loan funding and grant proceeds. Results were presented at a City Council meeting. The proposed 
revenue adjustments were adopted for 2019. 
 

City of Aspen (CO) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The City of Aspen (City) retained Raftelis to conduct a technical 
review of their consultant of record’s most recent water and electric rate study. Raftelis reviewed the consultant’s rate 
study and determined that a complete revision was required. The City had developed its own financial plan but requested 
an update using rate revenue projections based on detailed billing data. Raftelis used the City historical billing to project 
rate revenues over the 5-year period. Based on that data, Raftelis was able to develop the necessary revenue adjustments 
over the study period.  
 
The City also requested a new cost-of-service and rate model. The cost-of-service model included a unique cost allocation 
methodology. Instead of the traditional water allocations of average day, peak day, peak hour and customer costs, the 
City uses a potable cost allocation separated into four functional cost areas - Demand, fire, pumping, and variable charge. 
They also have a fifth non-potable component for raw water customers. These functional areas also serve as the rate 
structure components.  
 
We allocated line operation and maintenance costs, their capital program, debt service, and changes in reserves. The City 
had determined that they were incurring significant increases in fire-related costs. This was due in part to increased 
operations and maintenance associated with maintaining the various fire-related facilities and capital costs associated 
with fire protection. The City’s topography and customer density presents a number of challenges with having a system 
properly sized for fire protection. 
 
Instead of customer classes, each customers rate structure is based on the number of equivalent capacity units or ECUs. 
The four cost components in the cost-of-service analysis also serve as the rate structure components. ECUs are based on 
the number of fixtures in the dwelling. Demand and fire charges are assessed on a per ECU basis, pumping is assessed on 
volume of water pumped to the residence. There are three levels of pumping. The variable charge thresholds (a 5-tiered 
increasing block structure) are also based on the number of ECUs. 
 
City Council had provided direction that they wanted to mitigate rate shock to low volume users. Raftelis designed a rate 
structure module allowed City staff to transition to cost-of-service over multiple years, while still recovering the overall 
annual revenue requirement. Todd presented the cost-of-service approach to City Council in August 2018. The final cost-
of-service analysis and rates is anticipated to be complete in time for their 2019 budget approval in October 2018. 
 

Denver Water (CO) 
Originally developed to provide for Denver Water’s revenue needs while encouraging conservation, the organization’s 
current rate structure had not undergone a full-scale rate structure study in 20 years. Much has changed since that time-
water use habits, average demand and peak day needs, available technology, revenue stability, and an increased emphasis 
on the customer experience-for a start. To gain support for this initiative, Todd presented key drivers to the CEO and 
Board. Coming off of the 2013 drought and floods raised the issue of revenue instability to the forefront. Todd served as 
the project manager on this engagement, which included assistance from Denver Water’s Public Affairs Division as well 
as an outside facilitator. Todd oversaw and managed a ‘lessons-learned’ workshop co-sponsored with the Water Research 
Foundation, an external affordability study, a customer rate perception survey, as well as a 20-person stakeholder group. 
Todd led in-house development of all rate structure modeling with staff.  
 

Page 81 of 123



 RAFTELIS 17 

 
 

Denver Water outside-city customers make up 50% of revenues and usage for the utility. Denver Water serves these 
customers through contracts with special districts called “distributors." Distributors are charged in accordance with 
Denver’s Charter provisions, “outside-city rate recover the full cost of providing service plus an additional amount." In 
1990, the Board developed a cost-of-service model using the utility-basis of rate setting. This was used to address the 
significant population growth outside the city with a decline of population in the city of Denver. As time progressed, the 
methodology became less suitable, more complex, and more opaque. The Board determined that the utility-basis was no 
longer workable under current conditions. 
 
Todd led this project and developed cost allocation alternatives that both met current circumstances of a growing Denver, 
satisfied the Charter provisions, and equitably allocated costs between inside and outside city customers. Over a 14 month 
process, Todd evaluated several alternatives, worked with a Distributor Task Force, and met with Board members 
individually to review model alternatives. The Board adopted the new cash basis methodology in May 2013. 
 
Denver Water assesses System Development Charges (SDCs) for new connections to the system. SDCs were updated 
annually however, the last analysis of the structure was completed in 1999. Todd led an internal team to address 
inconsistencies in the calculations of capacity costs. The SDCs were developed using the ‘hybrid’ method which considers 
available capacity with future capacity projects. The unit cost of capacity using the hybrid method was used to develop 
the fee schedule for each type of development. This uniform unit cost ensured equitable recovery from all classes of 
customers. Todd developed ‘SDC guidelines’ to assist Water Sales staff in assessing SDCs based on the changes adopted 
by the Board. Todd met with Distributor representatives, members of the developer community as well as the Citizen’s 
Advisory Council to review alternatives and present findings.  
 

City of Scottsdale (AZ) 
The City of Scottsdale provides sewer service to approximately 73,500 customers which include a small number of 
contract customers outside the City. The City completes a comprehensive cost of service rate study approximately every 5 
years. For this study, The City retained Raftelis to complete the following: 

• Cost of service and rate analysis,  
• Model that can be integrated into their budgeting process,  
• Research extra strength surcharges for specific customer classes 
• Evaluate different wastewater return to sewer factors and the impacts to revenue stability. T 

The City has a number of commercial customers whose rates vary by COD and TSS strength. Raftelis completed research 
to determine the validity of those values currently used. This included surveying utilities with similar schedules, 
researching state and federal documents as well as published research on wastewater discharge by various commercial 
establishments. The results showed that the City’s extra strength values fell inline with other utilities and industry 
publications. 
The cost of service analysis is ongoing however, it is anticipated that the cost allocations and rates will not be significantly 
affected with this update. A final report and model with training will be delivered at the end of the project. 
 

City of San Diego (CA) 
The City of San Diego provides service water and wastewater to approximately 300,000 customers. The City retained 
Raftelis to conduct a comprehensive water and wastewater cost of service and rate analysis. Also included in this study 
was development of wastewater industrial pretreatment fees and capacity fees for both utilities. Raftelis will deliver a 
customized financial planning, cost of service, and rate model for the City’s use at the end of the project. Mr. Cristiano is 
leading the efforts on this project. 
 
Of particular concern to the City was ensuring that rates are equitable and follow Proposition 218 requirements. In 
addition, the previous droughts have caused variability in revenues. As a result, they’ve requested an analysis of their 

Page 82 of 123



 RAFTELIS 18 

 
 

recovery of fixed charges and variable charges. Any increases to fixed charges may negatively affect low volume and low 
income users. Raftelis is completing scenario analysis on financial planning alternatives that will minimize rate impacts 
and optimize funding for their large capital improvement program. The rate design module will allow the City to evaluate 
different rate structures with varying fixed charge recovery as well as showing the impacts to customers. Raftelis will be 
presenting these results to the City’s Independent Rate Advisory Committee (IROC) for feedback and recommendations. 
The study will conclude with a presentation to City Council for vote on the proposed rates. Any rate approval would be 
effective in FY21. 
 
Mr. Cristiano is also updating their industrial pretreatment fees to comply with an internal audit. This evaluation 
considers all activities the industrial pretreatment department completes to manage permits, issue violations, sample 
customers, and monitor truck waste. The outcome will be cost-based fees for each of these areas which will comply with 
the internal audit and Proposition 218. 
 
Finally, Mr. Cristiano updated the City’s water and wastewater capacity fees to ensure that fees recovered the cost to 
serve growth. The fees include in-service assets plus future growth-related projects. Fees are assessed on a per EDU basis. 
This process follows the Proposition 218 requirements. 
 
Town of Marana (AZ) 
Todd was the project manager on this engagement. The Town of Marana Water Department (Marana Water) required a 
comprehensive financial plan and rates and fees update for their water and water reclamation utilities. The last complete 
rate study was conducted and adopted in 2013 and included scheduled rate adjustments through January 2017. The non-
rate fees and cost-of-service analysis was last conducted and adopted in 2009. Marana Water’s study goals included the 
development of a long-term rate and fee plan that enabled the department to recover sufficient funds to meet operational 
and capital expenses associated with the water and water reclamation utilities. They also wanted to recognize the rapid 
growth anticipated over the next 10 years and the associated and the maintenance necessary to maintain all capital 
infrastructures, current and future in the financial plan projections.  
 
Todd oversaw the development of multiple water and water reclamation financial plans. Working with Staff, including 
the Finance Director and Operations Direction, the Raftelis project team refined the cash flows to minimize the annual 
revenue adjustments while meeting the annual operating and capital needs of each utility. These financial plans were used 
to develop the revenue requirement and cost allocations for the water and water reclamation cost-of-service analysis. 
 
As part of the cost-of-service analysis, Marana Water requested the development of a new private fire line fee. Although 
Marana Water had not specifically tracked the number of private fire lines, the Raftelis team worked with the operations 
department and the business services team to create an estimate of private fire lines. The fire line cost was specifically 
identified in the cost-of-service analysis and those costs were applied specifically to those customers with that service.  
 
Raftelis also updated Marana Water’s groundwater resources volumetric rate. This rate was not adequately recovering 
these annual resource costs. Like the private fire line cost allocation, the Raftelis team worked with Staff to identify those 
specific charges which should be included in the rate.  
 
Marana Water also wished to change the wastewater volumetric rate for commercial customers’ domestic meters from a 
winter quarter average basis (WQA) to actual water usage (commercial customers have separate irrigation meters). This is 
a more representative approach, as the majority of the water supplied to the commercial domestic taps was non-
consumptive and as a result, is discharged to the water reclamation facility.  
 

Page 83 of 123



 RAFTELIS 19 

 
 

Finally, Marana Water has several miscellaneous fees which required updating. Of critical importance was updating the 
trip charges from the customer service field department. The trip charges were integrated into many of the other fees. 
Raftelis calculated fees evaluating identifying staff that were engaged in the process, the tasks and the time to complete 
the tasks for each fee. 
 

City of Tolleson (AZ) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The City of Tolleson (City) retained Raftelis to conduct a 
comprehensive financial plan analysis for the City’s water and wastewater utilities. The City was embarking on an 
aggressive renewal and replacement program for the water utility. The City purchases a sizeable portion of their water 
from the City of Phoenix. The City also relies on wells and storage to meet peak demands. A requirement of the contract 
with Phoenix is to maintain sufficient redundancy to meet water service demands should there be a disruption in service 
from the City of Phoenix. Raftelis worked with Staff to develop attainable financial plan goals while minimizing the 
impact to customers. The City adjusted timing of certain non-critical projects to ensure that revenue adjustments 
remained smooth and predictable. The wastewater utility was also undertaking a proactive renewal and replacement 
program. Because the City’s wastewater treatment plant is co-owned by three large industrial customers, the increased 
costs were spread among the City and the industrial users. Remaining costs were passed onto rate payers. Current 
reserves were able to absorb the nominal increased costs to retail wastewater customers, so no increase was necessary 
over the 10-year study period. The City Council adopted a 25% revenue adjustment for water - the first increase since 
2011. 
 

City of Buckeye (AZ) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The City of Buckeye (City) retained Raftelis to conduct a 
comprehensive financial plan, cost-of-service, and rate design analysis for the City’s water and wastewater utilities. The 
City service area is approximately 145 square miles and according to the US Census Bureau, is the fifth fastest growing 
City in the US as of 2018. Water service is provided entirely through groundwater. Wastewater service is provided 
through four water reclamation facilities. Raftelis developed water and wastewater financial plans for the 5-year study 
period, FY19 - FY23. The City has developed a robust capital plan to address the need for new facilities to support 
growth as well as maintain the systems. Because facilities must be built prior to new development, impact fee funds must 
be supplemented with rate revenues and bonds to fund the projects. Raftelis developed a number of rate increase 
scenarios that not only met operational cost requirements but also satisfied meeting the capital improvement program 
costs. Raftelis also developed rate alternatives based on a comprehensive cost-of-service analysis for each utility. As of 
January 2019, the final rate structure alternatives are being presented to the City’s Water Rate Advisory Group for review 
and comment. The City Council adopted a line item charge to recover the additional revenue rather than through a rate 
increase. This was approved in November 2019. 
 

Salt Lake City Department of Public Utilities (UT)  
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The Salt Lake City Department of Public Utilities (City) 
engaged Raftelis in 2017 conduct comprehensive water, sewer, stormwater and streetlight cost-of-service rate studies. 
These studies included developing revenue requirements, cost-of-service allocations, rate design, and impact fees. Impact 
fees includes a review of the methodology for each utility - water, sewer, and stormwater. A hybrid or combined 
methodology was selected for the water and sewer utilities. This methodology included an evaluation of the existing 
assets as well as determining the growth-related portion of future capital, and estimating the capacity to be served in the 
10-year time horizon. The stormwater impact fee was assessed using the buy-in methodology. The valuation of assets for 
each utility was based on replacement cost less accumulated depreciation. 
 
In conjunction with the rate studies, the City formed a Rate Advisory Committee (RAC) to solicit feedback and 
recommend changes to the City’s existing water and sewer rate structures. Todd co-facilitated six RAC meetings which 
included an overview of the water and sewer systems, the long-term challenges faced by the City as well as detailed 

Page 84 of 123



 RAFTELIS 20 

 
 

discussion of rate-setting 101 and analysis of various rate structures. The RAC committee members reached consensus on 
two water rate structure alternatives and two sewer rate structure alternatives to present to the City’s Public Utilities 
Advisory Board (PUAC). The City anticipated the PUAC made their final recommendation to City Council in January 
2018. Todd oversaw the development of the cost-of-service and rate design analysis for the utilities. He developed the rate 
alternatives for review by the RAC based on the selected pricing objectives. He also led the development of the water, 
sewer, and stormwater impact fee analysis. The fees were developed based on an Impact Fee Facilities Plan completed by 
their engineering or record. The impact results had to comply with state statutes.  
 

City of Pocatello (ID) 
This City of Pocatello (City) conducts comprehensive rate studies for its water, wastewater, and sanitation utilities 
approximately every 5 years. Todd was the lead analyst on the 2002 and 2005 engagements and served as the project 
manager on the 2010 and 2019 studies. The study included the development of 5-year financial plans, cost-of-service 
analyses, and rate design for each utility. In addition, the City requested an update of their water and wastewater system 
capacity charges.  
 
Revenue and expenditure projections for each utility were based on their City’s FY19 with significant input from Staff. 
Raftelis reviewed and developed the inflation factors with Staff’s input. Additional staff positions were included in the 
operating budget for each utility as well. Raftelis reviewed several iterations of the utilities’ capital plans including costs 
and timing options to help minimize rate increases. Raftelis developed revenue projections using detailed billing data by 
individual customer, adjusted for growth and anticipated changes in use (flows) per account. For the water utility 
financial plan, infrastructure upgrades to treated water storage and new wells were the key drivers for revenue increases – 
the City prefers to cash finance most capital projects. Revenue increases for the wastewater utility were driven by the new 
debt service payments for a recent upgrade and expansion to their wastewater treatment plant. Projected revenue 
adjustments were needed to fund a new administration building and significant investment in the collection system as 
well. The sanitation utility incurred additional unexpected costs because of the changes in the market demand for 
recycling material which required nominal revenue adjustments over the study period.  
 
Raftelis updated the cost of service for each utility by reviewing previous cost allocations and system data. Raftelis held 
individual meetings with water, wastewater, and sanitation staff to ensure that costs were allocated correctly to maintain 
customer equity. Raftelis adjusted certain customer class rates to comply with the City’s rate policies and customer 
contracts. Unrecovered costs from the policy adjustments were reallocated to other customer classes based on their 
proportionate share of water demand and/or contributed flow. The sanitation cost of service included adjusting 
residential and commercial cart charges to recover the increased recycling costs. Rates were developed for each utility 
over a 5-year period from current rates to FY24 cost of service rates. Of importance to the City were a smooth transition 
of rates to minimize rate shock for all three utilities. 
 
Raftelis also updated its system capacity fees. The City has sufficient capacity to serve new growth. Using the buy-in 
method, Raftelis calculated the replacement cost of existing facilities. The ¾” equivalent demands for water were 
calculated by evaluating multiple years of data and developing an average demand per day for a ¾” meter. Using 
historical production data and master plan data, Raftelis calculated a theoretical peak day demand to calculate the 
capacity charge. Wastewater capacity charges were calculated in a similar manner. 
 
City Council expressed interest in reviewing the basis of the current outside City water and wastewater rate differentials. 
These rate differentials had been in place for well over a decade however, documentation on the calculations were not 
readily available. Raftelis applied a common approach to verify the differential for water and wastewater– a revenue 
requirement rate of return approach (similar to an approach for a regulated utility). Raftelis evaluated an additional 
approach for water based on a density factor. This approach assumes that that the distribution of outside City customers 
is less dense than inside City. As a result, outside City customers should incur a greater proportionate share of annual 

Page 85 of 123



 RAFTELIS 21 

 
 

small distribution mains costs. This approach indicated that the City could support a rate differential of 1.1 to 1.3 times 
inside City rates. 
 

City of Sheridan (WY) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The City of Sheridan (City), located in Northeast Wyoming, 
provides service to approximately 8,000 water and wastewater accounts. The City retained Raftelis to conduct a 
comprehensive water and wastewater rate and plant investment fee analysis. The City had maintained regular rate 
adjustments in the past few years but requested an evaluation of their long-term financial health. Todd served as the 
project manage on this engagement. With Raftelis staff, he oversaw the development of the billing data to project water 
sales and wastewater service revenues, projection of budgeted operating and capital expenditures. The City funds capital 
projects from rate revenues, low interest state loans, and a voter-approved capital tax. The City currently has several 
substantially complete capital projects funded by state loans. The timing of the payments vary with each project which 
causes variability in annual expenditures. Raftelis did a full accounting of existing debt and the proposed debt payments 
to ensure the financial plan represented future costs correctly. Todd also assisted with developing a raw water plant 
investment fee based on the value of water rights and raw water infrastructure along with a treated infrastructure PIF for 
water and sewer. Todd will present the preliminary findings to the City Council in March 2018.  
 

City of West Jordan (UT) 
The City of West Jordan (City) had not completed a rate study in more than 10 years. Rate increases had been sporadic in 
the past and had not kept with increasing costs. The service charge portion of a rate increase was recalled in 2017 which 
put additional pressure on each utilities’ reserve balances. The City was concerned that rate revenue was insufficient to 
meet the increasing capital needs while meeting debt service coverage requirement. Prior to this study, the City was not in 
compliance with their bond covenants. Another key issue for Council was the funding of growth-related projects with 
existing rate payer revenue. Raftelis conducted comprehensive financial planning scenarios with Staff and completed a 
cost-of-service analysis for each utility. Todd gave a presentation providing the details of the financial plan, cost-of-service 
analysis, and rate design for each utility. He presented materials to Council which showed that growth would pay its way 
over time however, existing rate payer revenue was needed to ‘front’ major growth-related construction efforts. The City 
adopted rate increases of 33%, 18%, and 24% for the water, wastewater, and stormwater utilities, respectively. 
 

Town of Gilbert (AZ) 
Todd served as the project manager on this engagement. The Town of Gilbert (Town) is located on the eastern side of the 
Phoenix metro area and while growth is still occurring, the Town will be approaching build out in the next 20-25 years. 
This project includes an update to the LUA, IIP and system development fees for police, fire, recreation, traffic signals, 
general government, water and wastewater services for each land use type (residential, multifamily, nonresidential, 
commercial and industrial). Due to arrangements for sharing wastewater facilities with another city, the Town has two 
service areas for the wastewater fees. In addition, Raftelis assisted the Town with development of a streets fee to recover 
the costs of intersection improvements and major roadway expansions necessitated by growth. Using trip data from the 
Institute of Transportation Engineers and capacity data from the Town, we developed a roads fee for each of the land use 
types. We met with Town Staff to review and update the IIP and the impacts on the fees, evaluated different 
methodologies to include outstanding debt on growth-related facilities to the fees. We developed the level of service for 
each fee area and calculated the total growth-related to be recovered in the fee over the study period. For water and 
wastewater, we used Equivalent Dwelling Units to determine the fee for each land use type. The final IIP, LUA and 
system development fees report was provided to the Town in March 2019.  
 

PUBLICATIONS 

• “Evaluating Pricing Levels and Structures to Support Reclaimed Water Systems,” Research Report, WateReuse 
Foundation, 2009 

Page 86 of 123



 RAFTELIS 22 

 
 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

• “A Guide to Designing Conservation-Oriented Water System Development Charges,” AWWA and Western 
Resources Advocates , 2018, https://westernresourceadvocates.org/projects/water-system-development-
charges/ 

• Co-Instructor for American Water Works “Financial Management - Cost-of-Service Rate Making Seminar,” 
2010-present 

• “The Grass is Always Greener…Building Consensus of Reclaimed Water Project Pricing for Jointly Operated 
Systems,” Water Environment Federation Technical Exhibition and Conference, 2008 

• “Honestly, What’s the Reuse,” WateReuse Symposium, 2008 
• “Showers to Flowers - Objectives and Approaches for Reclaimed Water Pricing," Utility Management 

Conference, 2010 
• “Which Conservation Rate Structure is Best for Your Utility,” Utility Management Conference, 2013 
• “Financial Management and Ratemaking Challenges for Reuse Water,” Utility Management Conference, 2015 
• “Rate Perception Surveys: Leveraging Customer Knowledge to Create the Right Rate Structure,” Annual 

Conference Exhibition (ACE), 2015 
• “Assessing Household Affordability in the Denver Water Service Area,” ACE, 2015 
• “Rate Perception Surveys: Leveraging Customer Knowledge to Create the Right Rate Structure,” Utility 

Management Conference (ACE), 2016 
 

PROJECT LIST 

• City of Aspen (CO) – Water and electric rate study 
• Town of Berthoud (CO) – Water and wastewater rate and fee study 
• City of Boulder (CO) – Water budget rate study and plant investment fee study 
• Breckenridge Sanitation District (CO) – Wastewater impact fee study 
• City of Craig (CO) – Water and wastewater financial plan 
• Town of Dillon (CO) – Water and wastewater rate and fee study 
• Town of Erie (CO) – Water and wastewater rate and fee 
• City of Fort Collins (CO) – Water and wastewater rate and fee study 
• City of Grand Junction (CO) – Wastewater financial plan 
• Water Research Foundation (CO) – WaterReuse research project 
• City of Greeley (CO) – Water and wastewater cost-of-service update 
• Pueblo Wastewater (CO) - Wastewater rate and fee study  
• Pueblo West Metropolitan District (CO) – Water and wastewater rate and fee study  
• City of Davenport (IA) – Water and wastewater financial plan 
• El Paso Water Utility (TX) – Reclaimed water rate study  
• City of Farmington (NM) – Water and wastewater rate study 
• City of Glendale (AZ) – Water and Wastewater Rate Study 
• City of Great Falls (MT) – Water and wastewater financial plan 
• Mammoth Community Water District (CA) – Water and wastewater rate study 
• Moapa Valley (NV) – Water financial plan 
• City of Peoria (AZ) – Water and wastewater rate study 
• City of Pocatello (ID) – Water, wastewater and sanitation rate and fee study 
• City of Prescott (AZ) – Water and wastewater rate and fee study  
• Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority (Puerto Rico) – Water and wastewater rate and fee study  
• Sacramento Sanitation District (CA) – Bond feasibility study 
• City of Salt Lake City (UT) – Water, wastewater, and stormwater rate and fee study  
• Snyderville Water Reclamation District (UT) – Wastewater financial plan study 
• City of Surprise (AZ) – General government impact fee study 

Page 87 of 123



 RAFTELIS 23 

 
 

Andrew Rheem 
TECHNICAL ADVISOR 
Senior Manager 
 

ROLE 

Andrew will provide oversight for the project ensuring it meets both Raftelis and 
industry standards. 
 

PROFILE 

Andrew has been providing financial planning, impact fee and rate consulting 
services to water, wastewater, reclaimed water, and stormwater utilities and local 
government for more than 16 years, including studies for numerous Arizona and 
Southwestern U.S. municipal utilities. He has served as project director, project 
manager and/or lead analyst for multiple long-standing clients providing a range 
of municipal financial planning, rate and impact fee assistance through multiple 
engagements. Andrew is a board member of the Growth and Infrastructure 
Consortium (formerly the impact fee round table) and served as the 2018 
conference president held in Scottsdale. Andrew is also a skilled presenter and 
has presented study findings and recommendations to management and 
governing bodies. Andrew holds Bachelors in Business Administration, Finance 
and Accounting from the University of Michigan - Ann Arbor.  
 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

City of Boulder (CO)  
Andrew is the project manager for an on-going study to complete a 
comprehensive water, wastewater and stormwater rate assessment and to develop 
rate alternatives for each utility. The study includes a detailed review of policies 
and practices incorporated in separate utility rate models maintained and updated 
by the City of Boulder (City) for validation and/or modification as well as a 
comprehensive review of improvements to the utility rate structures. The City 
implemented an individualized customer water budget-based rate structure in 
2007 and this study will include a review of the water rate structure and 
modifications to improve the effectiveness after 10 years informed by City 
experience and Raftelis experience developing water budget and individualized 
rate structure in Colorado and California. The City’s wastewater utility faces 
increased capital costs associated with increased regulatory requirements 
combined with repair and replacement requirements. The City’s stormwater 
collection and drainage systems are faced with equitably recovering increased 
operating and capital requirements associated with increasing storm drainage service levels following the flooding 
experienced by the City in the fall of 2013. The alternative rate structures will be completed to the existing rate structure 
updated for increased utility revenue needs and a January 1, 2018 effective date. Raftelis also reviewed the City’s revenue 
requirement and provided recommendations to the Utility debt service coverage and cash reserve policies.  
 
Throughout the project Raftelis has worked extensively with City staff to review and refine study findings and 
recommendations. Raftelis and City staff presented interim and will present final study recommendations to the standing 

Specialties 
• Impact fee consulting services for 

utility & non-utility fee categories 
including managing studies 
completed under different legislative 
guidance in Arizona, Colorado, 
Utah, & Montana 

• Financial & rate, impact fee & bond 
feasibility consulting services for 
water, sewer, reclaimed, & 
stormwater utilities 

Professional History 
• Raftelis: Senior Manager (2019-

present); Manager (2014-2018); 
Senior Consultant (2013) 

• Red Oak Consulting: Principal 
Management & Utility Rate 
Consultant (2003-2013) 

• Ajilon Finance: Telecommunications 
Analyst (2002-2003) 

• ISPhone Inc. & Appia 
Communications: Finance & 
Accounting Administrator (1999-
2001) 

• McLagan Partners: Compensation 
Analyst Intern (1998, 1999) 

Education 
• Bachelors in Business 

Administration, Finance & 
Accounting - University of Michigan 
at Ann Arbor (1999)  

Certifications 
• Series 50 Municipal Advisor 

Representative 

Professional Memberships 
• Growth & Infrastructure Consortium 

Board of Directors 

Page 88 of 123



 RAFTELIS 24 

 
 

Water Resource Advisory Board (WRAB) to provide direction regarding policies, practices and adjustments to the utility 
rate structure for review and approval by City Council.  
 

City and County of Denver (CO)  
Raftelis completed an Organizational Assessment study and Financial Plan for the City and County of Denver’s (City) 
Wastewater Management Division within the Department of Public Works in 2014. Andrew served as the financial 
planning task project manager that evaluated multi-year rate revenue increases for the City and County of Denver 
Wastewater Management Division.  
 
Raftelis assisted the City to complete a 10-year financial plan for the City’s sanitary sewer and storm drainage utilities and 
proposed rate revenue adjustments for 2016 through 2020 and effective July 2016. The City’s financial planning model 
was enhanced with additional capabilities including graphical dashboard and user interface, scenario capabilities, and 
capital funding alternatives. Raftelis evaluated a variety of capital improvement project alternatives and funding options 
to develop recommended alternatives for consideration by the City including Phase 1 Organization Assessment 
recommendations. The recommendations were summarized in a report to be presented to and adopted by City Council in 
2016. Following the rate study, Raftelis completed a bond financial feasibility study in October 2016 associated with 
stormwater utility revenue bonds issued to fund extensive capital requirements identified by the City. 
 

City of Steamboat Springs (CO)  
Andrew served as project manager for a comprehensive water and wastewater rate study for the City of Steamboat 
Springs (City). Separate water and wastewater financial planning models were updated to evaluate current and potential 
funding sources to support each utility operation over the next 10 years including future adjustments necessary to fund 
operations and the annual capital project requirements (including regulatory driven and capacity expansion 
improvements), and maintain a financially viable utility. A cost-of-service evaluation was then completed for each utility. 
The results of the cost-of-service and financial planning tasks were integrated into developing three water rate structure 
alternatives and two wastewater rate structure alternatives for full service City customers and a single alternative for 
wholesale water and sewer customers. The utility tap fees were also updated as part of the study. The findings and 
recommendations were presented to City Council in September 2016 and summarized in a report issued at the 
completion of the study. This study was an update of a comprehensive rate and fee study completed for the City in 2010. 
 

Mt. Werner Water and Sanitation District (CO)  
Andrew served as project manager for a comprehensive water and wastewater rate study for the Mt. Werner Water and 
Sanitation District (District) serving Steamboat Ski Resort as well as residential and commercial customers nearby. 
Separate water and wastewater financial planning models were developed to evaluate current and potential funding 
sources to support each utility operation over the next 10 years including future adjustments necessary to fund operations 
and the annual capital project requirements, and maintain a financially viable utility. A cost-of-service evaluation was 
then completed for each utility. The results of the cost-of-service and financial planning tasks were integrated into 
developing two water rate structure alternatives and two wastewater rate structure alternatives for full service District 
customers. The utility tap fees were also updated as part of the study. The findings and recommendations were presented 
to the District Board in August 2016 and summarized in a report issued at the completion of the study. Electronic copies 
of models created as part of the study were delivered to the District for their use. 
 

City of Trinidad (CO)  
Andrew is serving as project manager for a phased comprehensive water and wastewater rate study for the City of 
Trinidad (City). Separate water and wastewater financial planning models were developed to evaluate current and 
potential funding sources to support each utility operation over the next six years including future adjustments necessary 
to fund operations and the annual capital project requirements, and maintain a financially viable utility as part of Phase 1. 

Page 89 of 123



 RAFTELIS 25 

 
 

As part of Phase 1, Raftelis recommended increases to the City’s wastewater rates effective in 2016. Phase 2 includes a 
review and update of City water and wastewater plant investment fees. 
 

City of Longmont (CO) 
Andrew served as project manager for a 2014 water financial planning, rate and fee assistance for the City of Longmont’s 
(City) water and wastewater utilities. As part of the study, we completed a comprehensive water rate and fee study. We 
populated a 20-year water financial plan in projecting future adjustments to utility revenues and projected debt issues to 
fund future capital expenditures. We then completed a water cost-of-service analysis. Capital improvement scenarios 
related to consolidating to one water treatment plant or maintaining two water treatment plants were evaluated including 
capital funding and impact to the multi-year rate revenue increases. Raftelis professionals worked with the City to 
evaluate changes to the tiered rate structure to simplify and increase the conservation pricing signal to customers for 
discretionary and wasteful water use. Schedules of water rates over a five-year period were adopted. Findings and 
recommendations were presented to the City and a report was issued. Raftelis professionals also updated the City’s water 
and wastewater system development fees and miscellaneous charges assessed by the utilities as part of this study.  
 
Andrew was project manager for a 2011 engagement that updated the utility water and wastewater rate models to 
incorporate additional user defined scenarios and reflect changes to the water and wastewater utility operations and fund 
structure. We delivered a user manual and completed training sessions with utility staff at the completion of the model 
update. 
 
In 2012, Andrew served as project manager assisting utility staff in updating the wastewater financial planning model to 
reflect updated capital improvements and revenue requirements. The cost-of-service analysis was updated to reflect 
adjusted revenue requirements and annual user charge adjustments were developed for 2013 through 2017. The City 
Council adopted the recommended rates.  
 

City of Greeley (CO)  
Andrew served as project manager for a variety of water and wastewater utility financial studies for the City of Greeley 
(City) since 2013. The assistance includes updating the City’s water and wastewater utility financial planning, rate and fee 
analyses. Recent assistance includes evaluating the rate of return and rate base for contract water customers, reviewing 
the water and wastewater system development fee structure, developing revenue requirement projections and review of 
the capital improvement program and reassessment of proposed debt service issues for both the water and wastewater 
utilities. We are currently assisting the City in enhancing the water and wastewater rate models to incorporate graphical 
dashboard and user interface, scenario capabilities, and capital funding alternatives. 
 
Andrew also served as project manager for a completing a comprehensive stormwater financial planning and capital 
funding evaluation in 2015. The City is proposing to accelerate the timing of capital improvements and is evaluating debt 
and rate revenue increases through this study. 
 

City of Pueblo (CO)  
Andrew served as project manager for a 2015 study to update of the wastewater utility financial plan and proposing 
annual rate adjustments over a five-year period of 2016 through 2020. To meet more stringent federal and State of 
Colorado regulations on wastewater effluent, the utility scheduled significant upgrades to the treatment plant and will be 
completing additional regulatory-driven upgrades to the treatment plant and collection system through 2025. Raftelis 
designed and updates an 11-year financial plan incorporating the latest billing data and customer usage trends, projected 
annual operating costs adjusted for inflation, staffing requirements and treatment plant process requirements, and the 
capital improvement program needed to meet the utility’s replacement schedule and regulatory requirements, federal 
guidelines. We developed a forecast of revenue adjustments needed to maintain the utility’s financial health to be 
presented to City Council and during public hearings in 2015. City Council meetings and public hearings will be held 

Page 90 of 123



 RAFTELIS 26 

 
 

prior to adoption with rate adjustments effective January 1, 2016. The study is currently being updated to reflect 
alternative capital project requirements associated with alternative regulatory-driven upgrades with an extended timeline 
over twenty years. Raftelis is completing an EPA financial capacity assessment to identify the impact of base and 
additional capital and operating requirements on residential customer bills to median income and related community-
wide metrics of financial capacity.  
 

City and County of Broomfield (CO)  
Andrew served as deputy project manager for a 2012 comprehensive water and sewer rate and fee study for the City and 
County of Broomfield (City). We populated separate 30-year water and sewer financial plans in projecting future 
adjustments to utility revenues and projected debt issues to fund future capital expenditures. We also updated the City’s 
water and wastewater license fees. We completed separate water and sewer cost-of-service analysis. Raftelis professionals 
worked with the City to evaluate changes to the tiered rate structure working with City Council and City staff to review 
changes to the existing uniform rate structure. Sewer rates were developed to fund annual revenue requirements including 
projected wastewater treatment plant upgrades including the development of a surcharge assessed to each equivalent 
residential unit to fund requirements associated with meeting more stringent wastewater effluent requirements. Schedules 
of water and sewer rates for 2013 were presented to City Council and adopted. Findings and recommendations were 
presented to the City and a report was issued.  
 
Previous assistance includes lead analyst to complete a non-potable reuse system financial analysis regarding potential 
investments and expansion of the existing non-potable reuse water system. The analysis included multiple scenarios 
focused on the incremental effect to reuse financial plan and revenue requirements of investments to expand the reuse 
system.  
 

East Larimer County Water District (CO)  
Andrew served as project manager for a plant investment fee, financial planning, cost-of-service and rate design models 
for East Larimer County Water District. He proposed 2008 plant investment fees, retail and wholesale user charges were 
adopted by the District Board. Updated models were delivered to the District at the end of the study. The financial plan 
and rate were service were updated in 2009 to reflect reductions to customer growth and customer water use and 
presented to the District Board for adoption. 
 

City of Salida (CO)  
Andrew served as project manager for a 2015 comprehensive water and wastewater rate study for the City of Salida 
(City). Raftelis completed a pricing objectives ranking process to assist in developing recommendations to the City’s 
water and wastewater rate structures. The pricing objectives evaluation was completed with both City finance and public 
works staff and City Council to rank twelve pricing objectives. As part of the study, Raftelis is developing separate water 
and wastewater financial planning models to evaluate current and potential funding sources to support each utility 
operation over a 10-year study period. Raftelis will work with City staff to project future rate revenue adjustments 
necessary to fund operations and the annual capital project and maintain a financially viable utility. A cost-of-service 
evaluation was completed for each utility. The results of the cost-of-service and financial planning tasks were 
incorporated in the evaluation and development of rate structure alternatives for City customers. Raftelis is also 
evaluating the sufficiency of the City’s water and wastewater system development fees in recovering the costs of facilities 
serving new development. Findings and recommendations were summarized in a report and presented to the City 
Council at the completion of the study.  

 
El Paso Water Utilities (TX) 
Andrew served as project manager and/or lead analyst for a variety of engagements completed for El Paso Water Utilities 
(EPWU) since 2003. Andrew served as project manager for twelve annual updates of wholesale water and wastewater 
financial planning and cost-of-service rate models using the base-extra capacity method. Individual wholesale customer 

Page 91 of 123



 RAFTELIS 27 

 
 

reports are issued at the completion of the annual studies. Recent studies include development of retail water rate design, 
revenue projection and bill impact analysis tool developed for EPWU and used to evaluate rate structure alternatives 
during the last two budget and rate cycles. Andrew also recently replaced the water, wastewater, reuse and stormwater 
financial planning models. Andrew is currently leading the annual update of wholesale water and sewer rates. 
 

City Council of Salt Lake City (UT) 
Andrew served as project manager and lead analyst for a 2012 study to evaluate establishing a Street Light Utility and 
monthly user charge billed through the City Council of Salt Lake City’s (City) utility bill to recover costs previously 
funded by the City’s General Fund and/or annual assessments in extensions of three Special Assessment Areas (SAAs) 
throughout the City. We worked with City staff to develop an inventory of street light facilities in non-assessed and SAAs 
throughout the City, develop a 10-year financial plan and service level scenario analysis projecting revenues and projected 
operations and maintenance, debt service and capital cost requirements, evaluate and recommend an equivalent 
residential unit (ERU) and recommend monthly street light utility charges assessed to recover annual requirements. 
Andrew assisted Rick in developing workshop material and interim and final study findings for a Street Light Utility 
citizen-stakeholder committee established to evaluate alternative street light utility, service level and fee based funding 
mechanisms to fund annual City street light requirements. Recommendations were presented to City Council, which 
initially included establishing a base street light charge for base service levels and additional surcharges for three 
groupings of SAAs to recover additional costs associated with enhanced service levels provided in the SAAs. City 
Council adopted a City-wide base street light utility fee and decided to leave the assessment-based funding mechanisms in 
SAAs in place.  
 
 

Lake Havasu City (AZ) 
Andrew also served as project manager for a Wastewater Expansion Financial Feasibility Analysis that included eight 
annual studies that updated and enhanced a multi-year financial planning and rate model related to a $400 million, 10-
year sewer expansion project. The model is used to calculate rate increases required in meeting bond covenants in support 
of annual bond issues funding the majority of the expansion project. The results of the feasibility analysis were 
documented in a system report and rate change recommendations were presented to City Council. He assisted Lake 
Havasu City (City) as part of the financing team with annual presentations to three bond rating agencies and the Water 
Infrastructure Financing Authority of Arizona (WIFA) related to annual loan applications. The expansion program was 
completed in 2012.  
 
In 2015, Raftelis served as the feasibility consultant for a successful debt restructuring of the City’s wastewater debt issued 
to fund the wastewater capital expansion program that extends the maturity of the debt service payments to reduce 
annual debt service while improving the inter-generational equity by matching the liabilities more closely with the lift of 
the constructed facilities. Raftelis assisted the City and the City’s financial advisor in presenting the proposed plan to the 
three major rating agencies. The independent financial feasibility report was developed evaluating the feasibility of the 
proposed financing and impact to the City’s wastewater rates. The debt restructuring was completed in October 2015. 
 
Andrew served as deputy project manager for a comprehensive water rate and fee study. The study included the 
development of a 10-year water financial plan, cost-of-service and rate design model. An evaluation of capital 
improvement project growth and non-growth funding and funding scenario analysis was included. The financial plan 
evaluation included multi-year rate revenue increases to meet established financial performance thresholds while fully 
funding operations and capital expenditures. Three water rate structure alternatives were presented to City Council that 
modified the existing system-wide rate structure and replaced it with customer class specific tiered rate structures with 
increase conservation pricing signals. City Council adopted one of the proposed alternatives. The findings and 
recommendations were summarized and presented to the City Council at the end of the study. 
 

Page 92 of 123



 RAFTELIS 28 

 
 

City of Scottsdale (AZ) 
Andrew served as the quality assurance/quality control manager for a 2016 Biennial Audit of Land Use Assumptions, 
Infrastructure Improvements Plan and Development Impact Fees study completed for the City of Scottsdale (City). The 
City assesses water system, water resource and wastewater system development impact fees, adopted and in compliance 
with the requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS §9-463.05). Andrew assisted the Raftelis project manager for the 
engagement to initially develop and refine the approach to completing the Biennial Audit, one of the first to be completed 
following the implementation of ARS §9-463.05 in 2014. Andrew also reviewed preliminary and final study findings 
providing quality control review and overall evaluation of study services. The final report was issued to the City and the 
study was finalized in October 2016 and presented to City Council. 
 

City of Phoenix (AZ) 
Andrew is the project manager an on-going Biennial Audit of Land Use Assumptions, Infrastructure Improvements Plan 
and Development Impact Fees study completed for the City of Phoenix (City). The City assesses libraries, parks, fire 
protection, police, major arterials (roadway facilities), stormwater, water, wastewater and water resource development 
impact fees, implemented in 2015 in compliance with the requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS §9-463.05). The 
water resource development impact fee is assessed throughout the City while the eight other development impact fees are 
assessed within growing areas in the periphery of the City that vary within eight different service areas. Andrew is leading 
the overall study including development and implementation of the study approach and methodology, managing the 
analysis and audit efforts of the study team and serving as the primary Raftelis point of contact working closely with the 
City project manager and project team. study findings will be documented within a draft and final report. This study was 
initiated in December 2016 and is anticipated to be completed before June 30, 2017.  
 

City of Avondale (AZ) 
Andrew is the project manager an on-going Biennial Audit of Land Use Assumptions, Infrastructure Improvements Plan 
and Development Impact Fees study completed for the City of Avondale (City). The City assesses general government 
(grandfathered), libraries, parks and recreation, fire, police, streets, water, and wastewater development impact fees, 
implemented in 2014 in compliance with the requirements of Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS §9-463.05). All fees are 
assessed system-wide throughout the City’s service area. Andrew is leading the overall study including development and 
implementation of the study approach, managing the analysis and audit efforts of the study team and serving as the 
primary Raftelis point of contact working closely with the City project manager and project team. study findings will be 
documented within a draft and final report. This study was initiated in January 2017 and is anticipated to be completed 
before June 30, 2017. 
 

City of Surprise (AZ) 
Andrew served as the project manager for a utility and non-utility development impact fee study. We assisted the City of 
Surprise (City) to develop an infrastructure improvements plan and update the City’s non-utility, water, water resource 
and sewer system development impact fees for compliance with Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS §9-463.05). We also 
assisted the City during the non-utility and utility development impact fee public hearing and public notice process 
completed in May 2014.  
 
Andrew assisted the City to complete an extensive review of the over 120 development agreements the City has 
completed that documented previous, outstanding and future reimbursement liabilities amongst the City’s general fund 
and utility and non-utility funds. This study was initiated in 2012 with the final study findings issued in 2013.  
 
Andrew previously assisted the City to complete a historical review of development impact fee funded expenditures 
finalized in early 2011. This review was completed by fee area from a period of fiscal year 2007 through fiscal year 2010 
to compare the funding sources of completed capital projects against the growth-related portion of development impact 
fee eligible facilities identified in a previous development impact fee study by fee area. The results of the review were a 

Page 93 of 123



 RAFTELIS 29 

 
 

series of correcting journal entries and interfund loans. The study results were presented to City Council and 
implemented. 
 

City of Prescott (AZ) 
Andrew served as the project manager for a utility and non-utility development impact fee and water and wastewater rate 
study completed in 2014. We assisted the City of Prescott (City) to develop an infrastructure improvements plan and 
update the City’s non-utility, water, water resource and sewer system development impact fees for compliance with 
Arizona Revised Statutes (ARS §9-463.05). We also assisted the City during the public hearing and public notice process 
as part of the non-utility and utility development impact fee update adopted in May 2014.  
 
We also assisted the City to complete a comprehensive water and sewer rate study. The study included evaluating a five-
year financial plan and revenue requirements to fund on-going operations, debt service and current and projected water 
and sewer system capital improvements and exceed established financial performance thresholds. Following the financial 
plan and revenue requirements evaluation, a water and sewer cost-of-service and rate design analysis was completed. 
Recommendations and findings were summarized in the study report and presented to City Council for adoption and 
implementation in 2015.  
 

Lockwood Water and Sewer District (MT)  
Andrew is the project manager for a comprehensive water and sewer financial planning, impact fee, cost-of-service and 
rate design study being completed for the Lockwood Water and Sewer District (District). Lockwood is located just 
outside of Billings, Montana and provides water and sewer services. Raftelis is also facilitating a system development fee 
advisory committee, as required by Montana Code Annotated, to review and refine proposed water and sewer system 
development fees. The sewer utility has been recently installed with effluent being conveyed to the City of Billings 
wastewater treatment plant for treatment and disposal. Previously water customers had individual septic systems and 
there are many such system still in place which will be connected to the District’s sewer system as drain fields fail and/or 
through future phases of the sewer system expansion. The District will also be conveying pre-treated wastewater flows to 
the City of Billings generated by ExxonMobil at a refinery adjacent to the District service area and Raftelis assisted the 
District during the contracting phases as well as development of the one-time system development fee to be assessed to 
ExxonMobil upon connection to the District’s system. The study was initiated in July 2016 and is anticipated to be 
completed by March 2017 with rates and fees implemented effective July 1, 2017. A report will be issued documenting 
study findings and recommendations to be presented to the District Board. 
 

PROJECT LIST 

Financial Planning, Rate and Fee Design 
CO: City and County of Denver, Aurora Water, Thornton, Greeley, Pueblo, Longmont, Broomfield, Boulder, Superior, 
Salida, Rifle, Fort Lupton, Steamboat Springs, Mt. Werner Water and Sewer District, Trinidad, Pueblo West 
Metropolitan District, Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment Technical, Managerial and Financial 
Capacity Development Program, Fort Cason, Rocky Mountain Arsenal National Wildlife Refuge, East Cherry Creek 
Valley Water and Sanitation District, East Larimer County Water District (ELCO), Arapahoe County Water and 
Wastewater Authority, Widefield Water and Sanitation District, Eagle River Water and Sanitation District, Upper Eagle 
Valley Water Authority, Willows Water District; AZ: Lake Havasu City, Kingman, Glendale, Metropolitan Water 
District; TX, UT, MT, CA, FL: El Paso Water Utilities, Salt Lake City, Lockwood Water and Sanitation District, Kearns 
Improvement District, Granger Hunter Improvement District, Moulton Niguel Water District, Missoula, Great Falls, 
Columbus, Tavares, Hernando County 

Page 94 of 123



 RAFTELIS 30 

 
 

Non-Potable and Reuse Water  
CO: Denver Water, Denver Public Schools, Aurora Water, Thornton, Longmont, Broomfield; TX, UT, MT, CA, FL: El 
Paso Water Utilities, Salt Lake City, Kearns Improvement District, Granger Hunter Improvement District, Moulton 
Niguel Water District, Tavares 
 

Impact Fee Studies  
CO: Aurora Water, Thornton, Longmont, Broomfield, Superior, Trinidad, Mt Werner Water and Sanitation District, 
Pueblo West Metropolitan District, Steamboat Springs, Los Pinos Fire Protection District, East Larimer County Water 
District (ELCO), Widefield Water and Sanitation District, Eagle River Water and Sanitation District, Upper Eagle Valley 
Water Authority; AZ: Fountain Hills, Buckeye, Surprise, Kingman, Chino Valley. Lake Havasu City, Prescott, Tempe, 
Glendale; TX, UT, MT, CA, FL: El Paso Water Utilities, Lockwood Water and Sanitation District, Kearns 
Improvement District, Granger Hunter Improvement District 
 
Stormwater  
CO: City and County of Denver, Aurora Water, Thornton, Longmont, Boulder, Superior; AZ: Surprise, Kingman; TX, 
UT, MT, CA, FL: El Paso Water Utilities 
 
Utility Creation and Implementation  
CO: Thornton, Soldier Canyon Filter Plant (Tri-Districts); AZ: Surprise, Kingman, Lake Havasu City; TX, UT, MT, CA, 
FL: El Paso Water Utilities, Salt Lake City 
 
Renewable Energy  
CO: Fort Cason, Rocky Mountain National Wildlife Natural Refuge 
 
Economic and Indirect Cost Evaluations  
CO: Thornton, Longmont, Denver Public Schools, Colorado Department of Public Health and Environment; AZ: Lake 
Havasu City; TX, UT, MT, CA, FL: El Paso Water Utilities 
 
Bond and Loan Feasibility  
CO: Aurora Water, City and County of Denver, Thornton, Longmont, Steamboat Springs, Colorado Department of 
Public Health and Environment; AZ: Lake Havasu City, Glendale, Metropolitan Water District; TX, UT, MT, CA, FL: 
El Paso Water Utilities, Tavares, Hernando County 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

• “Conducting Audit of Infrastructure Improvements Under Arizona Revised Statutes 9-463.05 - Scottsdale 
Arizona Case study,” Growth Infrastructure Consortium Conference, 2016 

• “How Lake Havasu City’s Pro-Active Wastewater Asset Management Program Makes Every Dollar Count,” AZ 
Water Conference, 2016 

• “Expense, Project and Budget Management Tactics to Provide Wastewater Service Delivery Without Increasing 
Rates,” AZ Water Conference, 2016 

• “Comparing Utility Rates, Fees and Financial Results,” Colorado Special Districts Association Conference, 2016 
• “Utility Financial Planning in Advance of Issuing Debt,” 2015 Water Bond Workshop, 2015  
• “Time for a Change? El Paso Water Utilities Considers a New Rate Structure,” Utility Management Conference, 

2015 
• “CIP Planning - Cradle to Grave,” Colorado Government Finance Officers Association Metro Coalition 

Workshop, 2009 
• “Mixed Use Water and Wastewater Rates and Development Fees - City of Longmont Case study,” Rocky 

Mountain Section American Water Works Association/Water Environment Federation, 2006 

Page 95 of 123



 RAFTELIS 31 

 
 

 

Matt Wittern APR, PMP 
STRATEGIC COMMUNICATIONS 
Senior Consultant 
 

ROLE 

Matt will provide support for the communications components of the project. 
 

PROFILE 

Matt has a 20+ year public relations career serving clients and customers in the 
public utility, engineering and construction sectors. He excels at designing and 
implementing strategic communications campaigns that incorporate stakeholder 
input to inform, advocate and achieve behavior change. His specialty is 
successfully translating complex subjects and concepts into messages that are 
easily understood by target audiences. At Raftelis he manages strategic 
communications planning and implementation, as well as stakeholder 
engagement initiatives. Prior to joining Raftelis, Matt managed a variety of public 
affairs efforts at Denver Water, which included designing the public engagement 
and public information strategies for nearly a billion dollars’ worth of 
infrastructure projects, spearheading the public process for the utility’s policy 
decision regarding Community Water Fluoridation, and led development of 
processes to gain stakeholder support for preventative maintenance on critical 
infrastructure. He earned a B.A. in journalism, is Accredited in Public Relations 
(APR) from the Public Relations Society of America (PRSA) and achieved status 
as a Project Management Professional (PMP) from the Project Management 
Institute. Matt has presented at national conferences including the American 
Water Works Association’s ACE and the City-County Communications and 
Marketing Association’s (3CMA) Annual Conference. Matt’s work has earned 
prestigious Gold Pick Awards from the Colorado Chapter of PRSA and SAVVY 
Awards from 3CMA. 
 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

 

Denver Water (CO) 
In the wake of updated guidelines from the Centers for Disease Control and 
Prevention regarding management of fluoride levels in drinking water, advocates 
on either side of the policy issue lobbied Denver Water’s Board of Water 
Commissioners (Commissioners). The utility charged Matt with designing and 
implementing a public process to provide Commissioners with sufficient 
information to make a policy decision. Matt brought together local and national 
experts on the issue to debate the pros and cons of managing fluoride levels. This 
included launch of a strategic communications strategy that built community 
awareness about the issues that garnered support for the board’s ultimate 
decision. The result was a decision supported by customers who were well 

Specialties 
• Strategic communication planning 
• Stakeholder engagement 
• Public involvement 
• Community outreach 
• Primary & secondary research 
• Expert positioning 
• Media relations 
• Social media 
• Art direction 
• Reputation management 
• Coalition building 
• Advocacy campaigns 

Professional History 
• Raftelis: Senior Consultant (2019-

present) 
• Denver Water: Senior Community 

Relations 
Specialist/Communications Manager 
(2015-2019) 

• Communication Infrastructure 
Group: Counselor (2006-2015) 

• CollegeInvest: Marketing 
Communications Manager (2005-
2006) 

• Transportation Expansion (T-REX) 
Project: Community Relations 
Manager (2002-2005) 

• LawsComm: Client Service 
Coordinator (1998-2002) 

Education 
• Bachelor of Arts in Technical 

Journalism (Public Relations) - 
Colorado State University (1999) 

Professional Memberships 
• Public Relations Society of America: 

Accredited in Public Relations (APR) 
• Project Management Institute - 

Project Management Professional 
(PMP)  

• International Association of Public 
Participation (IAP2) - Certified in 
Public Participation  

• WEF 
• AWWA 

 

Page 96 of 123



 RAFTELIS 32 

 
 

informed compared to the start of the campaign and a board that could stand behind the legitimacy of a policy reaffirmed 
by a process that included robust stakeholder involvement. 
 
Denver Water’s collection system is unbalanced, lacks resiliency and is at-risk to myriad natural disasters including 
wildfires, floods and drought. In the federal permitting process for the past 16 years, plans to expand the capacity of Gross 
Reservoir to help mitigate these risks had grown stagnant while voices of project opponents grew louder. How could 
Denver Water raise the profile of the nearly $500 million project and gain support from critical stakeholders and 
customers? How could claims of opponents be effectively rebutted and diffused? How could political support be 
marshaled and directed to ease the work of permitting entities and oversight authorities? Matt stepped in and became the 
architect of a multi-layered, multi-faceted advocacy and public information campaign designed to achieve these goals. It 
included: 

• Primary research to gauge support of/opposition to the project, along with identification of top objections from 
fence sitters and opponents that helped drive key messaging. 

• Successful lobbying of state and federal elected officials - including then Colorado Governor John Hickenlooper - 
to go on record supporting the project. 

• Recruiting dozens of local governments and major environmental groups to pledge their support and help negate 
claims by more radical/fringe environmental groups opposing the project. 

• Launch of stakeholder outreach plan including presentations delivered to civic organizations and creation of a 
community outreach office built to serve as a truth repository and venue to gather ongoing public input. 

• Design of a comprehensive proactive media relations campaign that targeted key stakeholders in major media 
outlets through third-party supporters’ letters to the editor, media tours, exclusive interview and meetings with 
editorial boards. 

• Design of robust education campaign delivered via social media campaign that that rebutted common false 
claims made by project opponents in ways that did not lend them legitimacy by drawing attention to opponents 
directly. 

• Development of a multi-layered online and multimedia presence that delivered compelling messages about the 
project’s purpose and need through rich storytelling, powerful imagery and the use of influential third-party 
advocates. 

 

 
Elbert County (CO) 
During a recent update of Elbert County’s impact fees for Parks/Recreation, Public Facilities, Sheriff, and 
Transportation, Matt was the strategist behind development of the strategic communications and community outreach 
plan. It prescribed an extensive stakeholder engagement process featuring interactive online meetings and surveys, which 
informed the study prior to online work sessions with County Commissioners. County leaders credited this work with 
raising awareness in the community, making the study and recommendations less controversial and thus more politically 
acceptable. 

 
Town of Jackson (WY) 
The Town of Jackson, located in Teton County, boasts among the highest incomes of any county in the United States. 
Juxtaposed against that is the thousands of hourly and service industry jobs that support the vibrant tourism industry, and 
Raftelis accepted the challenge to develop a water and wastewater rate structure that was fair and equitable, while pricing 
in complications such as the prevalence of seasonal homes that only had seasonal demand and impact on the system. 
Matt led the creation of a Technical Advisory Committee made up of representatives from myriad stakeholder groups. 
Through a series of meetings facilitated by Matt, the TAC ensured that the recommendation ultimately delivered to the 
Town Council was representative of the community and included measures for affordability. 

Page 97 of 123



 RAFTELIS 33 

 
 

 
Colorado Department of Transportation (CO) 
The Colorado Department of Transportation was in a pinch. After many years of costly traffic congestion through the 
critical I-70 mountain corridor, funding was secured to conduct the first step in the federal process to conform to 
requirements set by the National Environmental Protection Act (NEPA). After performing much of the work associated 
with the Draft Preliminary Environmental Impact Statement (DPEIS), concerns were raised by officials that the process 
had not sufficiently engaged members of the local low-income and minority communities. NEPA promotes 
environmental justice by requiring federal agencies to include a proposed project's potential environmental, economic, 
and public health impacts on low-income, minority, and rural communities. Mr. Witten was charged with designing and 
implementing a strategic engagement process to ensure voices from these underrepresented communities were included in 
the DPEIS. Teaming with partners specializing in multicultural outreach, the program successfully engaged members of 
this community by approaching with cultural sensitivity and appropriateness. The result was a successful integration of 
feedback from once underrepresented groups and satisfied environmental justice requirements. 
 
The Colorado Department of Transportation hired Matt and a partner engineering firm to develop a report to inform the 
Department’s approach to public involvement. Through primary and secondary research, and by applying public 
involvement expertise gained over years of practice, the team delivered the comprehensive report, which became the go-
to source on the topic. Feedback from end-users across the state was an incredible validation of the work that was 
performed. Many had been directed to perform public involvement as part of their individual projects, but there was no 
prior guidelines for implementation. This report gave important insights, dove deep into practice and provided a solid 
roadmap to ensure that those most impacted by the Department’s work were properly consulted. 
 
Drivers on Interstate 25 between Denver and Fort Collins were fed up. Northbound, the lane count abruptly went from 
four lanes to two just north of the metro area, creating congestion even during non-peak travel hours. In both directions, 
road rage was common as aggressive drivers wove in and out of traffic; creating unsafe conditions and frequent accidents 
that only added time and expense to travelers on this vital thoroughfare. Matt, as part of a consultant team, led 
community engagement efforts to gather stakeholder input on preferred alternatives to relieve the situation. The team 
launched a project-specific website (a near first for the time) to increase stakeholder awareness and provided multiple two-
way communication channels. Open houses were hosted at strategic points in the community that were designed to lower 
barriers to participation, and these strategies were successful. As a result of the outreach, stakeholders were in a much 
better position to understand the engineering and likely funding limitations. Members of the project team benefitted from 
the fresh eyes of stakeholders who were being impacted by the conditions and were able to screen alternatives to those 
that addressed the challenges while being responsive to the public’s needs. 

 
Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District (CO) 
Like many parts of the state, Northern Colorado is experiencing exceptional growth, with a population that is expected to 
double to a half-million people by 2050. As a key raw water provider to municipalities and agricultural interests, the 
Northern Colorado Water Conservancy District began plans in the 1980s to provide valuable source water to 15 partners 
working together to make the Northern Integrated Supply Project a reality. Today, on the cusp of state and federal 
regulatory approvals, NISP faces opposition from a very small but vocal minority who threaten to derail the public 
process and stop the project by any means necessary. Millions of dollars, years of planning and thorough environmental 
study and protections hangs in the balance. Raftelis was hired to assist Northern with development of a comprehensive 
public outreach and information campaign to ensure continued public support for this critical $1.1 billion project. Matt 
Wittern conducted thorough primary and secondary research to inform a plan that when implemented will ensure those 
who will benefit most from the project will understand the value it brings and its role to help ensure a continued thriving 
community for years to come. 

Page 98 of 123



 RAFTELIS 34 

 
 

 
City of Port Hueneme (CA) 
A rate study had not been performed for some time for this small coastal city, and the City Council stressed that 
affordability was a key factor for their approval. They also stressed the importance of transparency, especially as it related 
to ensuring the community’s significant population of individuals for whom English was not their primary language. As 
the strategic communications project coordinator, Matt conducted public outreach efforts for the City of Port Hueneme 
(City) that included the development of an infographic that explains the City’s rate structure changes, a Proposition 218 
notice, and facilitated three public workshops to explain the changes. All materials were translated into Spanish-language 
versions to enable communication across a potential language barrier. 

 
Montecito Water District (CA) 
This coastal community faced the opportunity to reduce its reliance on surface water sources that are becoming less and 
less certain due to the effects of climate change and drought. Their solution was to switch over to a guaranteed source 
using a state-of-the-art desalination plant. This change modified the cost structure paid by customers, but also came with 
benefits that were not obvious at first glance. Matt managed the implementation of a strategic communications plan that 
included development of a variety of communication tools and pieces that effectively made the case for why the changes 
planned will provide long-term community benefits. 

 
Cucamonga Valley Water District (CA) 
The Cucamonga Valley Water District, in California’s Inland Empire, was updating its rates and fees to account for a 
modified pass-through fee for State Water Project water, along with aligning its tiered rate structure to more closely 
follow the varied costs of different sources of water. In addition, CVWD’s financial plan and Capital Investment Plan 
called for infrastructure upgrades to its aging water infrastructure before costly breaks and outages became more 
common. Matt coordinated the implementation of a strategic communications and outreach plan that included 
communication tools such as bill stuffers, FAQs, a fact sheet/infographic, Proposition 218 notice, and participation in an 
annual community outreach event. 

 
Crestview-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency (CA)  
Crestview-Lake Arrowhead Water Agency (CLAWA) had not had a rate increase in 26 years and needed to ensure 
compliance with California’s Proposition 218 requirements. CLAWA sought specialized assistance communicating the 
purpose and need for rate increases to customers on a strict implementation timeline. Matt provided strategic 
communications assistance, including guidance on messaging strategy and tactics. 
 

City of Newport Beach (CA)  
The City of Newport Beach (City) Utilities Division provides water service to more than 86,000 people over 50 square 
miles. A high-income community composed of primarily single-family residential properties, there was significant 
resistance to past water rate increases. For the past four years, City Council declined to increase rates, but with costs such 
as purchasing supplemental water rising by 75% in recent years, the time had come for action. Matt was on the Raftelis 
team charged with developing a comprehensive strategic communications plan, messages and communications tools, 
including a Proposition 218 notice. The effort communicated the great need for infrastructure improvements to ensure 
continued deliver of high-quality drinking water and water for fire protection. City Council voted to increase rates at the 
end of 2019. 
 

Denver International Airport South Terminal Redevelopment Program (CO) 
Commuter rail was finally coming to Denver International Airport (DIA). The question was – how and where would it 
connect? The good news is the $500 million program was merely a continuation of the original vision for DIA that 

Page 99 of 123



 RAFTELIS 35 

 
 

included a world-class hotel and open-air plaza. The bad news was the multi-year construction – if managed and 
communicated improperly – would create chaos at one of the nation’s busiest travel hubs. 
 
Matt was on the team hired to develop a strategic communications program designed to properly inform a variety of 
internal and external stakeholder groups; to convey the vision for the program while also communicating valuable coping 
messages to avoid or mitigate disruption from construction. 
 
Strategic communications included a variety of stakeholder outreach strategies, including convening a Program Advisory 
Committee to bring together myriad groups and interests, a leading-edge diversity program to promote inclusion and 
opportunity, and a host of innovative communication tools (touchscreen kiosk, large vinyl floor messages, special events, 
etc.). 
 
The result of the multi-year campaign was reduced frustration levels among busy travelers and a program that serves as a 
model for other regional construction projects that must be undertaken while the underlying infrastructure remains in 
operation. 
 

City of Wheat Ridge (CO)  
Matt was the project manager on the team hired to design and implement a community-based brand identity 
development for the City of Wheat Ridge (City). The City’s existing brand was designed by a high school student in the 
mid-1970s and despite the brand’s age and dated nature, there were voices in the community opposed to the City’s 
rebranding. Matt designed a process that brought together key community stakeholders using a variety of public 
engagement techniques to draw out from them their view of what was quintessentially Wheat Ridge. These elements 
were then distilled down to core themes that were woven into the City’s new identity. While there was no consensus on 
what made Wheat Ridge Wheat Ridge, each group could literally point to an element of the brand and buy-in to the 
brand as a whole. The result was a process that members of City Council praised as the model for how City staff should 
encourage public involvement. A post-project survey found that 70 percent of respondents agreed that the new identity 
represents the City as a positive, progressive community. 
 

Cherokee Denver’s Redevelopment of the Old Gates Rubber Factory (CO) 
An icon (and to some an eyesore) on the Denver skyline since the late-1800s, the Gates Rubber Factory was 
decommissioned and for decades sat empty and had fallen into disrepair. One reason it remained in such a condition for 
so long was the significant environmental contamination that was present at the site that had been found to be leaching 
chemicals into the water table and into surrounding neighborhoods. Cherokee Denver, a developer specializing in 
brownfield redevelopments, secured the property and began work to revitalize it into a modern mixed-use destination 
including residential, retail, commercial and public spaces.  
 
Wary of powerful nearby neighborhood groups, Cherokee Denver hired Matt to lead community relations and public 
engagement activities designed to inform the community of future plans and incorporate public feedback to avoid 
political hurdles. Through a comprehensive campaign of education and outreach, Matt built valuable mutually beneficial 
relationships with community leaders, business interests, homeowner’s associations and elected officials. On his 
recommendation, Cherokee Denver convened the Cherokee Denver Redevelopment Advisory Committee, which 
consisted of community leaders and some of the project’s most outspoken opponents. Through dialogue and relationship 
building, objections from opponents dwindled and community support increased. The project resulted in a development 
that was properly remediated environmentally and today the community is one of the most desirable and visited in the 
area. 
 

Page 100 of 123



 RAFTELIS 36 

 
 

PRESENTATIONS 

• “Biosolids Communication Toolkit Workshop” Water Environment Federation 
• “Re-imagining Engagement: Harvesting what we’ve learned about virtual public engagement for the future” 

ACE ’21 Annual Conference 
• “Re-imagining Engagement: Harvesting what we’ve learned about virtual public engagement for the future” 

Arizona Water Association 2021 Annual Conference 
• “It’s Human Nature: Using Social Science to Enhance Your Communications,” RMSAWWA/RMWEA, 2020 
• “Ensuring Public Process Legitimacy Through the Lens of The Community Water Fluoridation Issue,” AWWA 

ACE Conference, 2016 

  

Page 101 of 123



 RAFTELIS 37 

 
 

Andrew Sparn  

SUBJECT MATTER EXPERT 
Senior Associate 
 

ROLE 

Andrew will provide input and guidance as a Subject Matter Expert for the capital 
planning, cost estimating, and alternatives analysis components of this project. 
 
KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE 
City of Rifle Utility Maintenance, Capital, and Rate Study (CO) 
Project Manager for to develop a GIS based asset management program for both 
the water distribution system and wastewater collection system. This effort was 
part of a larger Utility Maintenance, Capital, and Rate Study by JVA along 
with Raftelis Financial Consultants. The goals of the project were to develop a 
capital improvement plan to establish the City’s revenue requirement, update 
utility rates and rate design, introduce an asset management component to the 
existing GIS database, and to create a record of institutional knowledge by 
creating a fixed asset list. JVA is updating the existing tabulated GIS information 
to establish pipeline and utility segments. We assign condition ratings to each 
segment based on the probability of failure (e.g. age, material, maintenance 
history, soil type). Next a criticality rating is assigned to each segment based on 
the consequence of a failure (e.g. large diameter, within paved roads, proximity to 
railroad, proximity to buildings). JVA will combine the results of the Criticality 
Grade and Condition Grade to establish a priority ranking with those pipe 
segments with a high condition grade AND a high criticality grade with the 
highest priority for rehab or replacement. 
 

Water Master Plan, Pueblo West Metropolitan District (CO)  
Sr. Project Engineer for a master plan for the District’s potable water system. The 
master plan included demand projections based on estimated population growth, 
historical billing, and WTP production data. Richard completed a comprehensive 
performance evaluation of the District’s WTP, assessing the capacity and 
performance of each process: chlorine dioxide preoxidation, coagulation, 
filtration, disinfection, high service pumping, and backwash solids disposal. 
Improvements and operations modifications were recommended. Cost estimates were developed for each capital project 
for the next 10 years. 

 

Wastewater Master Plan, Pueblo West Metropolitan District (CO) 
Sr. Project Engineer for a master plan for the District’s wastewater system. The master plan included flow and loading 
projections based on estimated population growth and influent flow and loading records at the 1.8 MGD WWTP. 
Completed a comprehensive performance evaluation of the District’s WWTP, assessing the capacity and performance of 
each process including headworks screening, grit removal, activated sludge, secondary clarification, ultraviolet 
disinfection, aerobic digesters, and belt filter press. A model was developed to assess compliance with upcoming nutrient 
regulations. Bottlenecks in the collection system were identified. A capital improvements plan was produced covering the 
next ten years. 

Specialties 
• Capital planning 
• Cost estimating 
• Alternatives analysis 

Professional History 
• JVA Consulting Engineers: Senior 

Associate (2021- present); Regional 
Manager (2018 – present); Project 
Manager (2018 – present); 
Associate (2016-2021); Senior 
Project Engineer (2017); Project 
Engineer (2013-2016); Design 
Engineer (2013-2016) 

Education 
• Bachelor of Science, Civil 

Engineering – Columbia University, 
School of Engineering and Applied 
Science (2008) 

• Bachelor of Science, Physics, 
University of Puget Sound, Tacoma 
WA (2006) 

Certifications 
• Professional Engineer, Colorado 

(2015) 

Professional Memberships 
• American Water Works Association 

(AWWA) 
• Water Environment Federation 

(WEF) 

Page 102 of 123



 RAFTELIS 38 

 
 

Town of Nederland Master Infrastructure Plan and Rate Study (CO) 
Project Manager for a Master Infrastructure Plan for Town of Nederland, including Water Treatment and Distribution 
and Wastewater Treatment and Collection, Low Impact Stormwater Management and Erosion Control, and Traffic 
Flow evaluation throughout the Town. We have compiled a comprehensive plan which includes Capitol Improvement 
Plans prioritized for 10 years based on critical needs as well as incorporation of the Envision™ sustainable infrastructure 
rating system. In 2020, JVA updated the MIP to include additional projects for the water treatment, distribution, sanitary 
sewer, and wastewater treatment. As part of the 2020 MIP Update, JVA worked with Raftelis to complete a Rate Study 
and financial plan for the Town. 

 

Town of Lochbuie Water Model and Master Plan (CO) 
JVA prepared a fast tract Water System Master Plan for the Town of Lochbuie in 2016. The Master Plan included water 
demands, raw water source and quality, treatment, and potable water distribution and storage evaluations. The capital 
improvements plan for the Town include a WTP expansion, new elevated water storage tank, booster station, and new 
transmission mains, and available interconnects. Each of these projects will be required to serve new developments 
expected to break ground over the next five years. With this master plan in place, development reviews are streamlined. 
The planned WTP expansion project will increase reverse osmosis membrane capacity from 1.44 MGD to 3 MGD and 
include membrane clean in place process improvements. 

 

Todd Creek Metropolitan District Water Master Plan, Brighton (CO) 
Project Manager for the Water System Mater Plan and Capital Improvement Plan for the District’s potable and irrigation 
water systems. The master plan included demand projections based on estimated population growth, historical billing, 
and WTP production data. Raw water pump station capacities were calculated. Completed a comprehensive performance 
evaluation of the District’s WTP, assessing the capacity and performance of each process: preoxidation, ultrafiltration, 
reverse osmosis, disinfection, high service pumping, and concentrate disposal. Improvements and operations 
modifications were recommended. Cost estimates were developed for each capital project for the next 10 years. 

 
  

Page 103 of 123



 RAFTELIS 39 

 
 

 

 
 
Below, we have provided descriptions of projects that we have worked on that are similar in scope to 
the District’s project. We have included references for each of these clients and urge you to contact 
them to better understand our capabilities and the quality of service that we provide. 
 
 
 
City of Golden 
COLORADO 
 
Reference: Anne Beirele, Deputy Director of Public Works 
1445 10th Street, Golden, CO 80401 
P: 303.384.8153 / E: abeierle@cityofgolden.net  
 
The City of Golden (City) provides water, sewer, and drainage services to approximately 5,400 customer accounts 
through the use of separate, self-supporting utility enterprise funds. Rates charged for services must be adequate to 
support maintenance and operations, debt service on utility related debt, capital improvement programs and asset 
reinvestment, and transfers for general and administrative overhead. 
 
The City retained Raftelis to develop comprehensive financial plans, cost of service analyses, and rate designs sufficient to 
support a recommendation to City Council for adjustments in rates for water, sewer, and drainage operations. The study 
for the water utility also determined the adequacy and most appropriate rate structure for potable water and raw water 
considering such issues as conservation, consumption characteristics of various customer classes, price elasticity of 
demand, fairness and equity implications, and customer understanding.  
 
Raftelis developed the financial plans, cost of service analysis, and rate design for each utility. For the water utility, the 
City was interested in determining the cost of raw water which serves a number of recreational facilities. These costs were 
specifically identified in the cost allocation process to ensure equity was maintained between potable and non-potable 
customers. In a similar fashion, the City serves a small group of wastewater customers within their service area whose 
wastewater flows are conveyed to a non-Golden treatment facility. Working with Staff, Raftelis specifically identified 
those costs and developed a rate specific for these groups of customers. 
 
The study also included the convening of an ad-hoc Utility Rate Citizen Committee with membership from the Citizens 
Budget Advisory Committee, the Citizens Sustainability Advisory Board, the Planning Commission, and citizens at-
large. The purpose of this committee was to evaluate rate structure alternatives for the three utilities and recommend 
proposed alternatives to the City Council for their review and feedback. Raftelis presented information about the general 
rate-setting process, assisted the Committee with identifying key pricing objectives to help frame the rate alternative 
options, and presented the final alternatives for the Committee’s review. Raftelis also oversaw the technical efforts by the 
Raftelis team in developing the various options. This study is nearing completion and the Committee’s recommendation 
is anticipated to be presented to Council in August 2019. 
 
 

Appendix B: Project Descriptions 

APPENDIX B: PROJECT DESCRIPTIONS 

Page 104 of 123



 RAFTELIS 40 

 
 

Bancroft-Clover Water and Sanitation District 
COLORADO 
 
Reference: Tim Lowe, District Manager 
900 S. Wadsworth Boulevard, Lakewood, CO 80226 
P: 303.922.1113 / E: timl@bancroftclover.com 
 
Raftelis, led by Todd Cristiano, recently completed a financial plan and cost-of-service study with Bancroft-Clover Water 
and Sanitation District (BWSD). BWSD is a master meter customer of Denver Water and purchases wholesale sewage 
treatment services from the Metro Wastewater Reclamation District. Approximately 65,000 people are served by BWSD. 
The services provided by Raftelis included developing a 10-year financial plan, calculating cost of service rates, and 
evaluating the District’s rate structure for both water and sewer utilities. Raftelis also evaluated two different scenarios to 
observe the financial impacts of significant indoor water conservation, and outdoor conservation. The District also 
requested that Raftelis make recommendations regarding reserve amounts for operating and capital expenses. The Board 
adopted rates for 2019 based on Raftelis’ recommendations. 

 
 
Town of Erie 
COLORADO 
 
Reference 
Todd Fessenden, Public Works Director 
645 Holbrook Street, Erie, CO 80516 
P: 303.926.2895 / E: tfessenden@eriegov.org 
 
The Town of Erie (Town) retained Raftelis to develop comprehensive financial plans, cost-of-service analyses, rate 
designs, and tap fees for its water, wastewater, and storm drainage utilities. The Town has experienced significant growth 
since 2010 and anticipates this trend continue over the next 15 years. The Town expects capital improvements projects to 
keep pace as growth continues. To ensure the impacts of the cost of growth on existing rate payers is minimal, the Town 
has adopted a “growth-pays-for-growth” policy regarding tap and raw water dedication fees. Raftelis worked with Town 
staff to determine the most appropriate funding strategies for capital developments, using combinations of debt and 
available cash to ensure each utility would be able to fund operations and maintenance, meet target reserves, and adhere 
to required debt service coverage ratios.  
 
Raftelis also developed separate financial plans for each utility. Subfunds were created for each utility to monitor 
activities associated with ongoing operations and growth-related activities. This separation of funds allowed the Town 
Council to see how growth revenues were able to fund projects and whether rate revenue was required to make up 
deficiencies. 
 
Finally, Raftelis updated develop cost-of-service rates using the Town’s existing rate structure for each utility. Of 
particular interest was developing a new water rate structure for the multifamily class. Multifamily customers were 
assessed the single-family tiered structure without any adjustment of the tiers recognizing the number of units. This 
created a large inequity between single family and the multifamily class. Raftelis proposed a uniform rate for the 
multifamily class since domestic use and irrigation are provided through different taps. Study findings were presented to 
the Town Board and adopted in September 2020.  

Page 105 of 123



 RAFTELIS 41 

 
 

 
Mt. Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District 
COLORADO 
 
Reference 
Michael Fabbre, District Manager 
PO Box 5740, 100 Gothic Road, Mt. Crested Butte CO 81225 
P: 970.349.7575 / E: mfabbre@mcbwsd.com 
 
In 2017, the Mt. Crested Butte Water and Sanitation District (District) retained Raftelis to complete a two-phased 
evaluation with the initial phase commencing in 2017. Phase 1 of the study included a comprehensive water and 
wastewater utility financial planning evaluation identifying annual rate revenue adjustments which may be necessary to 
support annual O&M, debt service and planned capital improvements while maintain prudent cash reserves. District 
O&M, debt service, capital projects and revenues were forecasted over a 10-year planning period with adjustments for 
inflation and projected growth. Raftelis worked with District staff to evaluate multiple capital improvement and capital 
funding alternatives resulting in an optimized financial plan and capital funding strategy. The results of the Phase 1 
evaluation included proposed user charge adjustments effective in 2018 presented to the District Board and documented 
within the study report issued at the completion of the Project.  
 
Phase 2 was initiated in 2018 and completed in 2019. Phase 2 included an update to the District financial plan and a cost 
of service, tap fee and rate structure alternatives study for the City. The findings of the Phase 2 study included 
maintaining the current District tap fees as they recovered the unit cost of facilities benefiting new customers and 
proposed alternative water and wastewater rates and rate structures to recovery additional revenues from customers 
support District expenses and significant capital expenditures associated with water and wastewater treatment facilities. 
Raftelis proposed alternative tiered water rate structures which altered the water allocations in each tier as well as pricing 
for the respective tiers while modifying the minimum charge and minimum volume allowance. Raftelis also developed 
alternative wastewater rates structures, including a volume rate assessed to customer winter period water and anticipated 
wastewater discharges as well as maintaining the fixed fee per EQR (or SFD). The District opted to maintain the fixed fee 
per EQR, while evaluating billing system modifications necessary to implement a fixed and volume-based rate recovery 
approach for wastewater services which may be further evaluated in the future. The results of this study were finalized in 
2019 and presented to the District Board as well as documented within the Phase 2 study report.  
 
In 2019, Raftelis also assisted the District to complete a separate study to evaluate historical revenues and expenses 
assessed to a residential sub-District of the Meridian Lake Park (MLP) which joined the District and is assessed an 
additional surcharge. The District has financed improvements for MLP infrastructure dating back to the mid 1990’s when 
MLP became a sub-region within the District service area and continuing through recent investments in facilities in recent 
years and planned investments anticipated to be required. This study included an evaluation of the historical proportion 
of District expenditures benefiting only MLP as well as shared investments benefiting District and MLP customers 
compared to base and surcharge revenues assessed to MLP customers to determine the balance “owed” by MLP 
customers to other District customers. The results of this study were documented in a study report presented to the 
District Board and as part of a facilitated discussion with MLP representatives in October 2019. MLP and District are 
evaluating options to resolve this multi-year disagreement and evaluating alternative paths forward with the Raftelis study 
as a baseline documenting the historical balance. 
 
In 2016, Raftelis assisted the District evaluate District plant investment fee and water and wastewater rate structures the 
use of Equivalent Residential Units compared to other Colorado resort communities’ rate and fee structure assessments. 

Page 106 of 123



 RAFTELIS 42 

 
 

The study findings concluded that the District’s rate and fee structures and assessment practices were in alignment with 
industry approaches and those employed by comparable resort communities. Study findings were presented to the District 
Board and documented within a technical memorandum. 
 

 
St. Vrain Sanitation District 
COLORADO 
 
Reference 
Robert Fleck, District Manager 
11307 Business Park Circle, Firestone, CO 80504 
P: 303.682.4681 / E: rob@stsan.com 
 
St. Vrain Sanitation District (District) provides sewer service to the communities of Frederick, Firestone, and Dacono 
along the I-25 corridor. Raftelis conducted a comprehensive financial plan, cost of service, rate design, and plant 
investment fee study in 2018. St. Vrain has been experiencing rapid growth and has identified a future wastewater 
treatment plant expansion in the next ten years influenced by the rate of customer growth. Raftelis designed a financial 
plan that allowed the District to fund most of the capacity expansion project with plant investment fee revenues and debt 
to fund the remainder of the project. Raftelis cost of service analysis included updated rate recovery for contract 
wastewater and non-residential customer wastewater cost recovery based on higher strength discharges. Additionally, the 
customer profile of the service area is changing, and the District was evaluating with how best to serve multifamily 
customers, which the District had not previously served. Raftelis advised the District of the pros and cons of various 
multifamily rate methodologies. Raftelis also explored multiple rate designs with the District as it sought equity between 
residential and non-residential customers. Study findings and recommendations were presented to the District Board and 
documented within a study report subsequently implemented by the District. 
 

Page 107 of 123



  

 

Fee Proposal  
 
The following table provides a breakdown of our proposed fee for this project. This table includes the estimated level of 
effort required for completing each task and the hourly billing rates for our project team members. Expenses include costs 
associated with travel and a $10 per hour technology charge covering computers, networks, telephones, postage, etc. 
 

 

 

FEE PROPOSAL 

Page 108 of 123



  

Schedule of Charges 
 
Below, we have included hourly billing rates for the firm. These rates will be used for any additional work authorized on 
a time and materials basis.  
 

POSITION HOURLY BILLING RATE** 

Chair $450 

Chief Executive Officer/President $400 

Executive Vice President $340 

Vice President/Principal Consultant $310 

Director of Governmental Services $310 

Senior Manager $275 

Director of Florida Operations $225 

Manager $245 

Senior Consultant $215 

Consultant $185 

Creative Director $175 

Associate $155 

Graphic Designer $125 

Analyst $110 

Administration $80 

Technology Charge* $10 

 

*Technology/Communications 
Charge: This is an hourly fee 
charged monthly for each hour 
worked on the project to recover 
telephone, facsimile, computer, 
postage/overnight delivery, 
conference calls, 
electronic/computer webinars, 
photocopies, etc. 
 
**For services related to the 
preparation for and participation 
in deposition and 
trials/hearings, the standard 
billing rates listed above will be 
increased by an amount up to 50 
percent. 

Page 109 of 123



Page 110 of 123



Page 111 of 123



Page 112 of 123



Page 113 of 123



Page 114 of 123



Page 115 of 123



Page 116 of 123



Page 117 of 123



Page 118 of 123



Page 119 of 123



Page 120 of 123



Page 121 of 123



Page 122 of 123



Page 123 of 123


	II.A. Meridian Ranch Subdistrict 2nd QTR Financial Statements 06.30.21.pdf
	2021
	Cash Position - Meridian Ranch Subdistrict - 06.30.21.pdf
	CASH POSITION SUM


	II.A.MRMD 2nd QTR Financial Statements 06.30.21.pdf
	CASH POSITION SUM  
	FUND ALLOCATION 
	Financial Statements MRMD 06.30.21.pdf
	10-General Fund
	20-DEBT
	40-CTF

	Financial Statements MRMD 06.30.21 v2.pdf
	10-General Fund
	20-DEBT
	40-CTF


	III.A.3.d Raftelis_Fee.pdf
	Fee Proposal
	Schedule of Charges


